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A WORD FROM THE PRESIDENT

For the third consecutive year, most junior exploration companies saw their market
capitalizations fall and stagnate at their lowest level in 2013, and we were no exception. MDN
succeeded in 2013 to develop its projects in a prudent manner doing grounds works to identify
quality drilling targets on Nikonga and Ikungu East projects and this without diluting its
shareholders.
The year 2014 or 2015 could be a new beginning for the industry
In 2013, large and mid-tier mine operators focused their activities on reducing and or avoiding
losses. Once they have stabilized their revenues, and control their cost, their focus should shift to
renewing their resources. Less than 30% of the total reserves and resources of the large and midtier companies reportedly remain undeveloped as per (tickerscore.com, February 2, 2014), and
this figure could be even lower if resources with environmental, social acceptability or permitting
issues are excluded. Companies with very little in their pipeline will therefore likely be looking
to acquire gold assets. This will be especially true given that the acquisition targets are at their
lowest valuations in years compared to the cost of exploring for them.
Junior exploration companies with discoveries or feasibility-stage projects will be prime
acquisition targets. As such, they should be the first to receive inquiry by potential investors, and
consequently should be the first to see their valuations rise. We believe that by pursuing a path of
prudent development, as we did in 2013, MDN with a high-quality gold portfolio in Tanzania,
along with our feasibility-stage Crevier niobium-tantalum asset, should be amongst those junior
companies to be closely considered by potential investors. That is why we will continue to
prudently develop our assets in 2014 and seek the funds needed to accelerate this development.
We believe that MDN has gold assets of quality in Tanzania and we continue looking for partners
in 2014. The Crevier asset in Quebec is secure for many years and MDN does not have work
obligations in the immediate future to maintain the property in good standing. This tantalum niobium asset is at an advance feasibility stage. There are approximately 12 months of work to
complete the feasibility study. The final work will start when MDN will have obtained the
necessary funds for this work.

Signed: MARC BOISVERT, ing.
Président and Chief ExecutiveOofficer
Date : March 21, 2014
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MDN INC.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31ST, 2013)

SCOPE OF MANAGEMENT’S FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
The following analysis should be read in conjunction with the financial statements of MDN Inc.
(the “Company” or “MDN”) and the accompanying notes to the financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. The reader should also refer to the audited annual financial
statements as at December 31, 2012, including the section describing the risks and uncertainties.
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standard Board. In
preparing its opening IFRS statement of financial position, the Group has adjusted the amounts
reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with previous Canadian
GAAP.
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND CONTINUOUS DISCLOSURE
This Management Discussion and Analysis was prepared as of March 21 2014, and complies
with Rule 51-102A1 of the Canadian Securities Administrators on continuous disclosure. This
analysis is a supplement to the Company’s audited financial statements for the period ended
December 31st, 2013, and is intended to help the reader understand and assess the material
changes and trends affecting the Company’s results and financial position. It represents the view
of management on the Company’s ongoing activities and its current and past financial results and
presents an overview of activities planned for the coming months. The Company regularly
discloses additional information through press releases and financial statements available on the
Company’s website at www.mdn-mines.com and on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.
NATURE OF OPERATIONS
The business of the Company consists of acquiring, exploring and developing mining properties.
In the context of realizing its objectives, the Company is likely to sign various agreements
specific to the mining industry, such as the purchase and options to purchase mining claim
agreements as well as joint venture agreements. Mining activities ceased in February 2014 at the
Tulawaka gold mine. Under a joint venture agreement with African Barrick Gold ‘‘ABG’’, MDN
held a 30% interest in liquidity surplus of the Tulawaka gold mine,. It also carries on exploration
on other mining properties, but has not yet determined whether these other properties contain
economically viable minerals.
The Company also holds interests in properties located in the following areas:
Tanzania, East Africa: MDN is involved in various gold exploration projects totalling 473 km2 in
the area of Lake Victoria Goldfield.
Quebec: MDN is also preparing a feasibility study for the Crevier project in Lac-St-Jean,
controlled at 72.5%.
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EXPLORATION & EVALUATION IN TANZANIA
The year 2013 was the third consecutive year in which junior exploration companies saw their
market capitalizations decline. In 2012, MDN had exceptional exploration results, with the
discovery of both a high-grade gold zone on its Nikonga project and a 15-km volcanic belt on the
eastern extension of the large Ikungu gold zone.
In 2013, MDN chose to take a conservative approach to exploration, as we said we would at the
2013 AGM meeting of shareholders. In the context of a difficult market and sharply declining
junior exploration market capitalizations, MDN’s strategy for 2013 was to prudently increase the
value of its assets by developing high-quality drill targets while avoiding shareholder dilution.
MDN carried out the following work in 2013:
Property

Ikungu

Description

Statistics

Topographic survey of the DGPS property

16 km2

Ground magnetic survey on lines spaced at 50 m

100 km

pH/Eh geochemical survey of the property

647 stations

Ground magnetic survey on lines spaced at 50 m

1,384 km

More detailed ground magnetic survey on lines spaced at 25
608 km
m over a smaller area
Ikungu East

pH/Eh geochemical survey of the property

14,672 stations

Geochemical survey over a localized area

93 stations

Detailed mapping of the magnetic anomalies

40 km2

Petrographic sampling and description of the thin sections
Ground magnetic survey on lines spaced at 25 m over the
entire property
Nikonga

Isambara

789 km

pH/Eh geochemical survey of the property

9,810 stations

Detailed geological mapping over the entire property

2,129 stations

Detailed geological mapping

30 km2

Description of the outcrops

1,440 sites

Documentation and updating of artisanal mining pits

560 pits

Ground magnetic survey on lines spaced at 50 m

445 km
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NIKONGA
The Nikonga discovery was the result of two drilling program in 2012 on this wholly-owned
MDN property. The intersections that confirmed the discovery were:
NKD-02:
NKD-05:
NKD-04:

12.3 g/t Au over 4.2 m
10.9 g/t Au over 4.9 m
9.9 g/t Au over 4.2 m
17.3 g/t Au over 1.1 m

NKD-02
12.3 g/t Au over 4.2 m

Geophysics and mapping revealed the presence of a deformation corridor over 1 km wide that
crosses the property from east to west over a distance of more than 7 km. This corridor marks the
contact between the volcanic rocks and the Timiskaming-type sediments.

Au Anomaly
Cu anomaly

pH Anomaly
The soil acidity survey (6,810 reading sites) shows
areas with higher acidity (low pH),
suggesting the presence of sulphides at depth. One of these acid regions coincides with the gold
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The soil acidity survey (6,810 reading sites) showed areas with higher acidity (low pH),
suggesting the presence of sulphides at depth. One of these acidic areas coincides with the gold
showings, as well as being associated with gold, copper and molybdenum soil enrichment. The
circular Au-Cu-Mo geochemical anomaly is two kilometres in diameter. The acidity anomaly and
the Au-Cu-Mo anomaly also coincide with the positive drill results of 2012, which revealed the
presence of mineralization along felsic porphyry dykes.
Detailed mapping (1,440 sites visited) and the petrographic study confirmed the contact
between the volcanic rocks and the sediments, and the presence of the felsic porphyry dykes.
Many lineaments with gold-enriched soil were detected within the most acidic area and at the
centre of the Au-Cu-Mo anomaly. These lineaments, which range from 500 m to over 1.5 km in
length, are quality drill targets that could lead to the discovery of gold-bearing quartz-tourmaline
veins or shear zones with sulphides. Several of these lineaments in fact coincide with goldbearing drill intersections obtained in 2012, and they all constitute drill targets with strong
potential for the discovery of additional gold zones.
The presence of the following elements allows a parallel to be drawn with the Timmins mining
camp:
1) Presence of a quartz-tourmaline vein and gold-bearing pyritic shear between felsic
porphyry dykes
2) Gold-copper-molybdenum soil enrichment forming a circular anomaly 2 km in diameter
3) Increased soil acidity, suggesting a chemical reaction due to the presence of sulphides at
depth
4) A deformation corridor marking the contact between the volcanic rocks and the
sediments.
These geological observations allow a parallel to be drawn with the types of gold deposit in
Timmins, Canada, particularly those of the Hollinger-McIntire, Dome and Pamour mines, which
are world-class deposits associated with porphyry dykes and sometimes a porphyry intrusive.
These mines lie at the edge of a discontinuity at the contact between volcanics and sediments.
IKUNGU EAST
In 2012, exploration work done by MDN led to the discovery of an as-yet unknown 15-km long
volcanic belt. These days, discoveries of volcanic belts over 15 km long with gold potential are
few and far between. It is even more unusual to be in a position to explore more than 15 km of
uncharted territory, in a region of the world that hosts world-class deposits containing more than
3 million ounces of gold.
MDN has acquired exploration licenses to the east of its Ikungu property in Tanzania. The new
mineral property covers an area of 133 km2 and is wholly-owned by MDN, following an
application granted by the Ministry of Energy and Minerals of the United Republic of Tanzania.
Ground magnetic reconnaissance surveys were carried out in 2012 over the entire 15-km long
volcanic belt on lines spaced at 200 metres. A more detailed survey was then conducted at a 100metre spacing. Together, these two surveys involved 1,600 line-kilometres of ground magnetic
surveying.
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In 2013, some areas were surveyed in greater detail at a spacing of 50 metres, with MDN crews
covering a total of 1,992 line kilometres.
Soil geochemistry reconnaissance surveying was carried out in 2012. The survey was
conducted on lines spaced at 800 metres, with stations every 50 metres on the volcanic belt and
every 100 metres at the contact with the granitoids next to the belt. In 2013, soil acidity readings
were also taken in these areas. Four zones were identified, formed of gold-enriched samples
spread over three or four consecutive lines. These zones are 1.5 to 3 km long and are defined by
gold grades of 25 to 1,500 ppb Au. Such grades are considered significant anomalies when
compared to historical soil samples from mines now in production in Tanzania. They are also
similar to the results from the Ikungu mineralized zone on MDN’s adjacent property.
Mapping reconnaissance work initiated in 2012 continued in 2013, with a total of 1,180
outcrops visited by MDN’s geologists.
IKUNGU
On October 15, 2013, MDN signed a letter of intent granting Tanzania Minerals Corporation
(TMZ)an option to acquire 50% of MDN’s interest in the Ikungu gold project in Tanzania. On
December 20, 2013, MDN and Tanzanian Minerals agreed to set aside the letter of intent, and not
to sign a final agreement to jointly explore and develop the Ikungu project. The deposit of
$200,000 received and place in trust during the third quarter was returned to TMZ less the legal
expenses of $25,000 incurred by MDN.
MDN has resumed discussions with other potential partners. The Ikungu project, with its 2-km
long by 300-m deep gold zone, is one of the most advanced projects in Tanzania, with additional
growth potential along each of its extensions.
CREVIER PROJECT DEVELOPMENT
HISTORY

In fiscal 2010, MDN received a positive Preliminary Economic Assessment for the Crevier
project. This project consists of a niobium (Nb) and tantalum (Ta) resource found north of the
Lac-Saint-Jean region in Quebec. The Preliminary Economic Assessment was carried out by
Met-Chem Canada Inc.
Based on this positive assessment, MDN and Crevier Minerals (CMI) decided to prepare a
feasibility study on the project, with the intention of bringing the niobium and tantalum resource
to market. The feasibility study was ongoing throughout 2011, with the preparation of the
environmental and geotechnical studies required for construction of the key facilities (see
description in the 2011 MD&A).
The extraction of an initial bulk sample in the last quarter of 2011 enabled the Company to start
metallurgical process development work. A delay in the preparation and execution of pilot plant
testing and the analysis of the results of this portion of the study led to a delay in the overall
preparation of the feasibility study.
Much of the work related to the Crevier feasibility study was suspended throughout 2012
pending the metallurgical results needed for process development. Work was limited to
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completing the hydrometallurgy studies and conducting a second pilot plant test at COREM to
confirm the ore flotation parameters (see description in the Fourth Quarter 2012 MD&A).
During the course of the study, MDN decided in 2011 to increase its stake in the project to
72.5%, with IAMGOLD holding the remaining 27.5% interest.
2013 Crevier Project Development
Highlights
 Restructuring of MDN and Crevier Minerals Inc.
 Reorientation of the feasibility study
 Search for partners
Restructuring of MDN and Crevier Minerals Inc.
Serge Bureau has been the full-time President of Crevier Minerals Inc. since February 2013. His
mandate for the near term is to secure the funds required to complete the Crevier feasibility
study, as the Crevier project development will henceforth be financed by Crevier Minerals Inc., a
private company, rather than through equity financings by MDN. Marc Boisvert, formerly
MDN’s Vice President, Exploration, was appointed MDN’s President and Chief Executive
Officer, effective February 1, 2013.
Work on the feasibility study has been suspended until the required financing has been secured.
Internally, we are reviewing the study as a whole, and exploring the options for improving the
project economics in the light of the latest metallurgy results.
Reorientation of the feasibility study
We remain convinced that the Crevier project is one of the niobium-tantalum projects with the
best chances of being developed in the coming years. As markets evolve, the Crevier project is
also becoming one of the world’s very few sources of tantalum located in a stable region. The
higher tantalum demand and prices seen in the past two years are positive developments for the
Crevier project. Since the 2010 preliminary economic assessment, tantalum has risen in price
from US $150 per kg to over US $300 per kg, significantly improving the project economics.
In the first quarter of 2013, we received COREM’s final flotation report, which confirmed that
we could obtain an overall flotation circuit recovery of 62.8% and produce a concentrate with a
grade of 9.6% niobium and tantalum. This 62.8% recovery is considered normal for this type of
ore, and is sufficient to warrant project development.
The COREM results, combined with the SGS hydrometallurgy results from 2012, provide us
with an overall view of the mineral processing required to produce niobium and tantalum.
During the development of the hydrometallurgical portion of the mineral processing, the results
revealed the possibility of producing a niobium hydroxide at a lower cost, which could then be
converted into ferroniobium. This possibility was not considered in the 2010 Preliminary
Economic Assessment.
Supplementary metallurgy work is needed to optimize the current results. However, the tantalum
price increase associated with the possibility of producing ferroniobium allows us to reorient the
feasibility study based on a different approach, namely the production of three products: niobium
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oxide, ferroniobium and tantalum oxide. The current feasibility study will be reorganized along
the following lines:


Production of ferroniobium, for which there is a larger market than niobium oxide,
enabling us to increase mine production from 4,000 to 6,000 tonnes per day;
 This higher mine production results in higher tantalum production, thus enhancing the
leverage gained from improved tantalum prices;
 Production of niobium oxide and ferroniobium gives us access to a larger market, thus
facilitating niobium sales.
This production increase will lead to a shorter payback period and higher annual cash flow, and
should generate better project economics overall compared to the 2010 Preliminary Economic
Assessment.
Search for partners
Despite the collapse of the capital markets that normally support mining industry development,
we continued to promote our project during the year with the goal of finding a partner and/or
financing to enable us to complete the feasibility study.
We pursued discussions with various finance companies and potential development partners
throughout the year. A number of confidentiality agreements were signed with various potential
partners, who were given technical information on the project. No agreement has yet been
reached, and we are continuing to promote the project.
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SUMMARY OF OPERATING RESULTS
2013

2012

Operating royalties from Tulawaka mine
Administrative expenses
Write off of evaluation and exploration assets
Management fees related to operations of Tulawaka mine
Net finance cost
Net loss attributable to the shareholders of the company

$1,350
$4,839
$222
$88
($5,762)

$313
$2,201
$8,743
$619
$35
($ 12,863)

Basic and diluted net loss per share

($0.057)

($0.127)

101,527

101,527

For the period ended December 31
(In thousands of dollars, except for amounts per share)

Number of shares outstanding (in thousands)

Operating results
They were no royalties recorded for the period ended December 31, 2013, due to the closing and
the sale of Tulawaka mine, the royalties were of $313,144 for the same period in 2012. Other
revenues ($19,514 in 2013 and $82,907 in 2012), consist of interest income from the Company’s
various investments, gains on disposal of investment.
Financial charges totalled $107,014 compared with $118,002 for the period ended December 31
2013 and 2012 respectively. The financial charges included accretion expenses on other longterm liability of $14,796 ($22,809 in 2012), $32,744 net foreign exchange loss for 2013 ($80,935
in 2012) and bank charges & others of $59,474 for 2013 ($14,258 in 2012).
Administrative expenses:
2013
Professional fees
Salaries and fringe benefits
Share-based payments
Transfer fees
Travelling expenses
Rent
Office expenses
Promotion expenses
Reports to shareholders
Insurance, taxes and permits
Membership and training
Telecommunications
Taxes and permits
Project development
Amortization of property and equipment

2012

$ 451,341 $ 546,897
564,959
901,192
7,906
19,468
25,935
34,788
60,845
107,824
112,867 120,142
30,080
31,159
8,010
47,613
17,210
19,427
25,832
39,942
5,133
14,414
12,569
16,291
80
273,562
3,210
12,022
15,555
16,716
$ 1,350,451 $ 2,201,457
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Administrative expenses totalled $1,350,451 for the period ended December 31, 2013, compared
with $2,201,457 in 2012. Administrative expenses included professional fees of $451,341
($546,987 in 2012), a decrease mainly due to the non-renewal of financial communication and
investor relation contract coupled with lower fiscal advisor’s charges in Tanzania, partly offset
by the legal charges in Tanzania. Salary costs of $564,959 ($901,592 in 2012) variation mainly
attributable the non-replacement of one opened position, and temporary voluntary salary
reduction of employees, directors and board members resulting in a net payroll decrease of 35%
since September 2012. Due to the current economic situation, MDN conducted a review of its
operation and promotion expenditures, thus reducing several costs including travelling expenses
$60,845 (compared to $107,824 in 2012), membership and training expenses $5,133 (compared
to $14,414 in 2012), promotion expenses $8,010 (compared to $47,613 in 2012), Project
development expenses $3,129 (compared with $12,022 in 2012) and Insurance tax and permits
$25,832 (compared with $39,942 in 2012).
During 2012, after a review of the Tanzanian Revenue authorities, MDN was informed that
‘‘when a joint venture agreement between two foreign companies is made, regarding activities
held in Tanzania, the companies must pay a stamp duty, based on the value of the agreement’’.
Following an audit by the Tanzanian authorities, the company paid $273,562 on several joint
ventures, to comply with this rule. The stamp duty charge was registered in the administrative
expenses in 2012. There were no such charges in 2013.
Regularly, a special committee reviews the different mining property to be sure they still comply
with the strategic objectives of the company. Following this revision and due to contractual
obligation, write off of $4,838,864 was made during the period ended December 31, 2013:
On November 15 2013, African Barrick Gold plc (ABG), the project operator at the Tulawaka
gold mine in Tanzania reached an agreement for the sale of the Tulawaka mine. Following this
announcement, the Company MDN decided to cease its exploration activities around the
Tulawaka mine and proceeded to write off this asset for a value of $320,730.
Also, according to the analysis of market condition and metal prices, the Board of Director
decided to focus on the most promising and the more advanced projects, namely Ikungu, Ikungu
East, Nikonga and Simba (Isambara) and Crevier projects. Following this decision, the
Company proceeded to the write off its other gold projects in Quebec, namely Des Meloises, Isle
Dieu, Lac Short, Lespérence, Le Tac and Samaqua totaling $4,518,134.
During the period ending December 31, 2012, following the revision of the audit committee the
company made the following write off for a total value of $8,743,117:
Kunga, Tanzania ($5,989,005): Under the term of the agreement, the company had the
obligation to undertake a feasibility study by the end of 2012. The cumulative results
of the drilling programs and the evaluation of the mineral resources obtain to date did not justify
such a study, , the Company decided to cease all exploration activities in this property and to
write-off this project.
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Msasa, Tanzania ($946,667): The partnership agreement on the project Msasa, stated that we
had to complete a feasibility study by March 31, 2012. As the cumulative results on this property
did not justify conducting such a study by year end, , the Company decided to cease operations
on the property and preceded to write-off the Msasa project.
Baraka, Tanzania ($1,015,718): the cumulative results of the drilling programs did not justify the
continuation of further work and for this reason, the Company decided to withdraw from the
project.
MC Gold, Canada ($791,727): following disappointing results of the second drilling campaign
the Company decided to withdraw from the project in 2012, and not renew its mining licenses.
The management fees representing 30% of 3% of all operating expenses of the Tulawaka project
invoiced by the operator; was $222,010 for the nine months period ended December 31, 2013 in
comparison of $619,091 for the same period in 2012. The variation is due to the closure process
and the sale of the mine.
Income taxes
The income tax recoverable from the 2013 results is $633,367 compared ti tax expenses of
$1,597,970 in 2012. The 2013 amount is due essentially to a recovery of the temporary income
tax payable associated to our mining properties and our prospecting and evaluation assets written
off during 2013. The income tax expenses of 2012 dealt mainly with the reduction in the value
of the assets associated with the deferred taxes of the company following the closure of the
Tulawaka mine.
(Net loss)
For the period ended December, 2013, the Company recorded a net loss attributable to the
shareholders of the Company of $5,791,668 or $0.057 per share compared to net loss of
$12,862,510 or $0.127 per share for the same period in 2012 the variation is mainly due to the
write-off of exploration assets, the decrease of the administration expenses, and the variation of
deferred income tax, partly offset by the operating royalties from the Tulawaka mine received in
2012.
The net loss per share is based on weighted-average number of 101,527,220 common shares
outstanding as at December 31, 2013, which is the same as of for the same period in 2012.
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Financial position

December 31 2013

December 31

2012

(In thousands of dollars)

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Mining taxes receivable
Accounts receivables
Exploration and evaluation assets
Total assets
Total liabilies
Share Capital
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interest

$275

$1,375

$1,700
$140
$728
$27,409
$30,346
$1,215
$63,813
$27,275
$1,855

$3,059
$ 138
$1,124
$30,359
$36,168
$2,003
$63,813
$32,237
$1,928

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL POSITION
Cash, cash equivalents and term deposits
As at December 31, 2013, the Company’s cash position, consisting of cash, investments and term
deposits, amounted to $1,974,943 compared with $4,433,437 as at December 31, 2012. This
variation is mainly due to the investment in exploration and evaluation assets coupled with
normal operational expenses.
Mining taxes receivables
As of December 31, 2013, tax credit receivables amounted to $139,607 compared with $138,095
as at December 31, 2012. The mining taxes receivable are mainly attributable to the Crevier
project.
Accounts receivables
As of December 31st, 2013, accounts receivable amounted to $727,569 mainly due Tanzanian
sales tax reimbursements of $539,281, provincial and federal sales tax reimbursements of
$20,588 and resources credit of $20,588.
Mining properties
In relation with several property agreements in Tanzania, MDN made annual payments of
$81,473 for Ikungu ($51,860) and Nikonga ($29,613).

Exploration and evaluation assets
During the period ended December 31, 2013 the Company increased by $1,032,113 its
exploration and evaluation assets. Of this amount, $1,000,494 was spent for properties in
Tanzania, mainly for the Nikonga property ($253,939), for the Ikungu property ($371,967) and
Ikungu East property ($261,864). The Company also expensed $31,619 in the province of
12

Quebec, for the Crevier property.
Assets, equity attributable to equity holders of the Company and liquidity
Total assets amount to $30,345,795 as at December 31st, 2013, compared to $36,167,533 as of
December 31, 2012. The difference is mainly attributable to the write-off of exploration and
evaluation assets and to the normal administration expenses engaged for continuing activities of
the period.
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company amounted to $27,275,448 as of December
31st, 2013, compared to $32,236,847 as of December 31st, 2012, with the decrease being
attributable to the income of the period.
Liabilities
Total liabilities amount to $1,215,751 as at December 31, 2013, compared to 2,002,791 as of
December 31, 2013, variation mainly due to the income tax fluctuation.
Share capital
During the period ended December 31, 2013, the Company did not issue any new shares. The
Company`s outstanding share number is 101,527,220 which is the same as of December 31,
2012.

Non-controlling interest
The non-controlling interest is linked to the participation of 27,5% owned by Niobec Inc. in
Crevier Minerals Inc., subsidiary of the Company. Exercise variation relates essentially to the
net loss of 2013.
Liquidity needs for the current financial year

2013

2012

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities

(897,788)

2,447,181

Cash flows from (used in) investing activities

(226,687) (2,530,519)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash denominated in
Foreign currency

24,273

(1,728)

_________
Net variation in cash

(1,009,602)

________

(285,066)

For the actual financial period, from January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014, MDN’s liquidity
needs are estimated at $1,600,000. The Company’s management believes that this amount is
sufficient to meet its financial needs to discharge its commitments and liabilities in the ordinary
course of business.
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The application of the
assumption of going concern may be inappropriate because the above mentioned conditions
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indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Company to continue as a going concern. The financial statements do not include adjustments
that should be made to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities if the assumption of going
concern proves to be unfounded.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Company’s principal revenue was derived from the operation of the Tulawaka gold mine,
which has been in operation since March 2005. The lifespan of the mine is linked to the
exploitable gold-bearing reserves. African Barrick Gold (ABG) decided not to extend the life of
the mine beyond the middle of 2013 and sold its operation to Stamico in February 2014.
Except for the Company’s investment in CMI, which is at the evaluation phase, all of the
Company’s other resource properties are exploration properties. The Company’s long-term
profitability depends on the costs and success of its evaluation, exploration and development
programs, which may also be influenced by different factors. Among these factors, one must
consider the attributes of future mineral deposits, including the quantity and quality of the
resources, the development costs of a production infrastructure, financing costs, the market value
of gold, and the competitive nature of the industry.
Substantial investments are necessary to carry out evaluation and exploration programs and to
develop reserves. The Company depends on capital markets to fund its exploration and
development activities. Market conditions and other unforeseen events could affect the
Company’s ability to obtain the funds required for its development.
Metal and Mineral prices
Factors that influence the market value of gold, base metals and any other mineral discovered are
outside of the Company’s control. Resource prices can fluctuate widely, and have done so in
recent years. The impact of these factors cannot be accurately predicted.
Foreign Countries and Regulatory Requirements
The Corporation has various properties located in Tanzania, which may be affected in varying
degrees by political and financial instability, inflation and haphazard changes in government
regulations relating to the mining industry. Any changes in regulations or shifts in political or
financial conditions are beyond its control and may adversely affect its business.
Operations may be affected in various degrees by laws and regulations with respect to, among
other things, restrictions on production, price controls, export controls, exchange controls,
income taxes, expropriation of property, social and environmental matters and mine safety.
Uninsured risks
The Company may become subject to claims arising from natural phenomena, pollution or other
risks against which it cannot or chooses not to insure itself due to the high cost of premiums or
14

for other reasons. Payment of such claims would decrease and could eliminate funds available for
exploration and mining activities. Furthermore, as the Company carries on business in foreign
countries, it is subject to governmental decisions and policies.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions with key management personnel
The key management, including directors and members of the Board are people holding authority
and are responsible for planning, controlling activities of the Company, either directly or
indirectly.
Key management personnel compensation comprised:
Salaries and other short-term benefits
Share-based payments

2013
$ 486,328
4,630
$ 490,950

2012
$ 719,483
19,468
$ 738,951

Since the third quarter of 2010, following the issuance of shares of the long-term incentive plan,
the Company provided a loan of $62,400 to two of its keys managers.t. This loan, which carries
a rate of 1% per year, is reimbursable at all times either in part or in full and will mature on
December 31, 2014. If the borrower ceases to be an employee of the Company, the loan
becomes due immediately.
Commitments and other contractual agreements:
(a) Mining properties:

Nikonga (Tanzania)
On September 30, 2010, the Company acquired the Nikonga property, located 40km southeast of
the Tulawaka mine, in exchange for a series of annual payments:
- US$10,000 upon signature of the agreement;
- US$15,000 on the first anniversary of the agreement;
- US$20,000 on the second anniversary of the agreement:
- US$30,000 on the third anniversary of the agreement.
The subsequent annual payments increasing by US$2,000 each from the last payment, until the
start of a feasibility study or the abandonment of work;
An additional amount of US$100,000 will be payable upon completion of the feasibility study on
the property; and
An additional amount of US$200,000 will be payable upon the decision to enter into production.
Lastly, following the beginning of production, a royalty equal to 1% of net revenue of the
foundry will be payable. However, this royalty will be redeemable in the amount of
US$1,000,000.
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Ikungu (Tanzania)
On February 25, 2013, the Company signed an agreement with Metalinvest Capital Corporation
("Metalinvest "). Under this agreement, the Company granted an option to Metalinvest to acquire
an undivided 55% interest of the Company in the exploration licenses forming the Ikungu
property.
On May 14, 2013, the agreement was terminated because Metalinvest has not provided the funds
required by the agreement within the required timeframes.
On October 15, 2013, the Company signed a letter of intent with Tanzania Minerals Corporation
in which it gives him an option to acquire a 50% interest in the Company's exploration licenses
forming the Ikungu property.
On December 20, 2013, the two companies mutually decided not to enter into a definitive
agreement to jointly explore and develop the Ikungu Gold Project in Tanzania. The two sides
decided to abandon the letter of intent dated October 15, 2013. The Company returned to
Tanzania Minerals Corporation its initial deposit of $200,000 which was received at the signature
of the letter of intent and placed in trust, less the legal fees of $25,000 incurred by MDN.
Crevier (Québec)
Having carried out exploration investments required during fiscal 2012 work, the Company has
an option, without due date, to acquire an additional 15% interest in MCI by paying in cash or in
shares, discretion of the Company, $750,000 to the non-controlling shareholder.
(b) Management fees related to the Tulawaka Mine:

Under its joint venture agreement with African Barrick Gold, the Company committed itself to
pay management fees of 3% on its share of exploration, operating, development and capital
expenditures related to the Tulawaka mining property. Following the sale of this property by
African Barrick Gold, the management fee agreement ended.
(c) Operating leases:
The Company is committed under a lease expiring in July 2015 for the rental of its premises. In
May 2013, the Company exercised an option to terminate allowing it put an end to its lease on
January 1, 2015. Minimum payments for 2014 will be $ 104,941.20.
CONTINGENCIES
Communication with Tanzania Revenue Authority:
During the second quarter of 2013, the Company received a new written communication from the
TRA regional office in Mwanza in respect of withholding payment of alleged interests between
MDN Tanzania Ltd. and MDN Inc. for advances made by the parent company to its Tanzanian
subsidiary during the years 2004 to 2011. The TRA seized an amount of approximately
$515,000 (US$490,000) in sales taxes receivable included in accounts receivable in
compensation of the amounts claimed in the notice of assessment.
The Company has always stated in the various documents, including a contract between the two
parties, that the parent company made advances to its Tanzanian subsidiary without interest,
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which is a common practice in the industry of mineral exploration. The TRA claims that it is not
possible to have an interest free loan and the subsidiary should have retained 10% of all amount
of interest paid as withholding.
Management, after discussion with his lawyers, immediately notified the National Commissioner
of the TRA its opposition. Management believes that the TRA regional office in Mwanza does
not understand the particularities of mining exploration companies, given the standards of
markets, corporate business style as well as the inability of exploration company to obtain bank
loans. In this opposition, the management is confident of the chances of success with regard to
the dispute.
During the third quarter of 2013, TRA’s decision to use sales tax receivable in compensation of
the amounts claimed was overturned in court, but the TRA uses the highest appellate instance,
the Court of Appeal. On December 19, 2013, the Court of Appeal overturned ounce again the
TRA claims in favor of MDN’S position.
No provisions have been recorded in the Company’s financial statements as of December 31,
2013 as management is of the opinion that amounts claimed by the TRA mentioned in this
communication are not founded and that the Company does not owe any taxes to the TRA in
respect to the internal loans between MDN and MDN Tanzania. . Any amounts that may become
payable related to these contingency could have a negative impact on the Company.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial instruments
Fair value:
Certain of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair
value. Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on
the following methods. When applicable, further information about the assumptions made in
determining faire values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.
In establishing fair value, the Company uses a fair value hierarchy based on levels as defined
below:
● Level 1: defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets.
● Level 2: defined as inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are either directly or
indirectly observable.
● Level 3: defined as inputs that are based on little or no observable market data, therefore
requiring entities to develop their own assumptions.
Cash, accounts receivable and trade accounts payable and accrued liabilities are financial
instruments whose fair value approximates their carrying value due to their short-term maturity.
The fair value of the temporary investments obtained by discounting future cash flows or forward
interest rates derived from interest rates at the close of business on the balance sheet date for
similar instruments available on capital markets (Level 2).
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The fair value of the other long-term liability is determined by discounting cash flows with a
discount rate assessed by comparing closing rates of similar financial instruments at the balance
sheet date on the financial markets (Level 3).
The difference between the fair value of short-term investments and the other long-term liability
with the book value are not significant.

(a) Foreign exchange risk:
The Company was receiving royalty revenues until December 31, 2012 and incurs exploration
costs in US dollars and is consequently exposed to foreign exchange risk.

The balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated in US dollars are as follows:
December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

56,300

397,323

582,100

542,045

(555,776)

(406,747)

Cash
Accounts receivable
Trade accounts payable
and accrued liabilities

All other things being equal, a variation of 5% of the US dollar in relation with the Canadian
dollar would have the following effect on the net income (loss) and the other comprehensive
income.

Net (loss) income
Other
income

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

(25,363)

(877)

29,494

38,541

comprehensive

(b) Credit risk:
The credit risk is the risk that the Company is not paid by a third party who does not respect its
agreement obligations. It is mainly reflected in cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments
and in accounts receivable.
The Company invests its cash and its investments in high quality titles issued by Canadian
financial institutions. Also, the Company invests a portion of its cash in guaranteed investment
certificates and in bonds of public companies in order to reduce its exposure to credit risk.
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(c) Liquidity risk:
The liquidity risk is the risk the Company may encounter when payments of its engagement are
due.

The Company manages its liquidity risk by budgeting the necessary funds required to meet its
exploration plans. Moreover, the Company makes sure that the working capital is sufficient to
meet its current obligations.
The Company manages this risk through the management of its capital structure. In addition, it
manages the liquidity risk by continuously monitoring actual cash flows and projected. All
accounts payable and accrued liabilities are payable by the next financial year. As of December
31, 2013, the Company has sufficient funds available to meet its current liabilities.
d) Interest rate risk:
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.
The Group holds the majority of its cash in interest-bearing accounts which are therefore only
exposed to future cash flow fluctuations coming from changes in market interest rates.
Temporary investments consist mainly of bonds and guaranteed investment certificates with
maturity of less than twelve months and are, therefore, exposed to interest rate risk on fair value.
A fluctuation of 100 basis points on market interest rate would not have a significant impact on
the financial results of the Group for years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT:
In terms of capital management, the objective of the Company is to preserve its ability to
continue its mining exploration while maintaining the current exploration programs and
development of mining assets, to provide sufficient working capital to meet its current
commitments and pursue potential investment.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in accordance with the
aforementioned objectives, as well as in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets.
The Company does not have any externally imposed capital requirements, neither regulatory nor
contractual requirements to which it is subject, other than those related to its flow-through
financing program.
BASIS OF PREPARATION
FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the
Company’s functional currency.
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USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future
periods affected.
Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements is included
in Note 3 (d) - determination of capitalizable costs as exploration and evaluation assets - and in
Note 3 (n), which relates to the capitalization of refundable credit for mining duties where the
Company judged it would start production in the near future on its Crevier property.
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following
notes:
● Notes 3, 6, 7 and 8 - recoverability of mining properties and evaluation and exploration assets;
● Note 3 - assessment of refundable tax credits for resources and credit for mining duties;
● Notes 3 and 15 - recoverability of income tax assets.
● Notes 5 and 21 - recoverability of sales tax receivable from subsidiary MDN Tanzania Ltd.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these consolidated financial statements.

(a) Basis of consolidation:
SUBSIDIARIES
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries,
MDN Tanzania Ltd. (100% interest) and Crevier Minerals Inc. (“CMI”) (72.5% interest).
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed when
necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the Company.
A subsidiary which is fully consolidated but not fully owned by the Company results in a noncontrolling interest that is present separately on the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income and the consolidated statements of financial position.
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JOINTLY CONTROLLED ASSETS
The Company holds interests in mining properties through joint operating agreements which
constitute jointly controlled assets. A jointly-controlled asset involves joint control and offers
joint ownership by the Company and other venturers of assets contributed to or acquired for the
purpose of the joint venture, without the formation of a corporation, partnership or other entity.
Where the Company’s activities are conducted through jointly controlled assets, the Company
recognizes its share of the jointly-controlled assets, and liabilities it has incurred, its share of
liabilities incurred jointly with other venturers, and exploration and evaluation costs in the
consolidated financial statements.

TRANSACTIONS ELIMINATED ON CONSOLIDATION
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from
intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
(b) Foreign currency:
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group
entities at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency
at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the
difference between amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period,
adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and the amortized cost in foreign
currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated
to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.
Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in profit or loss. Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
FOREIGN OPERATIONS
The assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiary, of which the functional currency is the US
dollar, are translated to Canadian dollars at the exchange rate at the reporting date. The income
and expenses are translated to Canadian dollars at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign currency differences are recognized in other comprehensive income in the cumulative
translation account.
When a foreign operation is disposed of, the relevant amount in the cumulative amount of
foreign currency translation differences is transferred to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss
on disposal. On the partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the relevant
proportion of such cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interest. In any other
partial disposal of a foreign operation, the relevant proportion is reclassified to profit or loss.
Foreign exchange gains or losses arising from a monetary item receivable from or payable to a
foreign operating, the settlement of which is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable
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future and which in substance is considered to form part of the net investment in the foreign
operation, are recognized in other comprehensive income in the cumulative amount of foreign
currency translation differences.
(c) Financial instruments:
Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs, and their subsequent valuation is dependent on their classification.
LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.
The Company classified its cash and cash equivalents, temporary investments, and accounts
receivables as loans and receivables.
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The Company classified its trade accounts payable and accrued liabilities and other long-term
liability as financial liabilities at amortized cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial
liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
(d) Mining properties and exploration and evaluation assets:
Mining properties correspond to acquired interests in mining exploration permits/claims which
include the rights to explore for, mine, extract and sell all minerals, metals and diamonds from
such claims.
All pre-exploration costs, i.e. costs incurred prior to obtaining the legal right to undertake
exploration and evaluation activities on an area of interest, are expensed as incurred.
Once the legal right to explore has been acquired, exploration and evaluation expenditures are
capitalized in respect of each identifiable area of interest until the technical feasibility and
commercial viability of extracting a mineral resource are demonstrable.
Costs incurred include appropriate technical and administrative overheads.
Exploration and evaluation assets are carried at historical cost less any impairment losses
recognized.
When technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting a mineral resource are
demonstrable for an area of interest, the Group stops capitalizing exploration and evaluation
costs for that area, tests recognized exploration and evaluation assets for impairment and
reclassifies any unimpaired exploration and evaluation assets either as tangible and intangible
mine development assets according to the nature of the assets.
(e) Property, plant and equipment:
Items of equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
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the asset. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is
capitalized as part of that equipment. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of equipment are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred.
Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other
amount substituted for cost, less its residual value.
The depreciation is recorded using the declining balance methods at the following annual rates.
Insofar as it best reflect the expected pattern of realization of future economic benefits associated
with the asset:
Exploration equipment
Furniture and equipment
Computer equipment

20%
20%
30%

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.
(f) Impairment:

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective
evidence that they are impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that
a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a
negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses are recognized in profit or loss
and reflected in an allowance account against receivables. Interest on the impaired asset
continues to be recognized through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event
causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss.
NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
The carrying amounts of property plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
The carrying amounts of mining properties and exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for
impairment only when indicators of impairment exist, typically when one of the following
circumstances apply:
● Exploration rights have expired/will expire in the near future;
● No future substantive exploration expenditures are budgeted;
● No commercially viable quantities discovered and exploration and evaluation activities will be
discontinued;
● Exploration and evaluation assets are unlikely to be fully recovered from successful
development or sale.
If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
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Mining properties and exploration and evaluation assets are also assessed for impairment upon
the transfer of exploration and evaluation assets to development assets regardless of whether
facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation assets
is in excess of their recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit” or
“CGU”). The level identified by the Group for the purposes of testing exploration and evaluation
assets and mining properties for impairment corresponds to each property.
An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognized in respect of CGUs are allocated to the assets in the unit (“group of units”) on a
pro rata basis.
Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment
loss had been recognized.
(g) Provisions:
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
(h) Share capital and warrants:

COMMON SHARES
Common shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
common shares and share options are recognized as a deduction from deficit, net of any tax
effects.

FLOW-THROUGH SHARES
The Canadian tax legislation permits an entity to issue securities to investors whereby the
deductions for tax purposes relating to resource expenditures may be claimed by the investors
and not by the entity. These securities are referred to as flow-through shares. The Company
finances a portion of its exploration programs with flow-through share issues.
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At the time of share issuance, the Company allocates the proceeds between share capital and an
obligation to deliver the tax deductions, which is recorded as a liability for flow-through shares
obligation. The Company estimates the fair value of the obligation using the residual method, i.e.
by comparing the price of the flow-through share to the quoted price of common share at the date
of the financing announcement.
A group may renounce the deductions for tax purposes under either what is referred to as the
“general” method or the “look-back” method.
When tax deductions are renounced under the general method, and the Company has the
expectation of renouncing and has capitalized the expenditures during the current year, then the
entity records a deferred tax liability with the corresponding charge of income tax expense. The
obligation is reduced to zero, with a corresponding income recorded.
When tax deductions are renounced under the look-back method, the Company records a
deferred tax liability with a corresponding charge to income tax expense when expenditures are
made and capitalized. At that time, the obligation would be reduced to zero, with a corresponding
income recorded.
SHARE ISSUANCE COSTS
Share issuance costs are charged to deficit in the same period during which they are incurred.
(i) Share-based payments:
The grant date fair value of share-based payment awards granted to employees and directors is
recognized as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in contributed surplus, over
the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount
recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the related service
and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately
recognized as an expense is based on the number of awards that do meet the related service and
non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.
(j) Revenue:
The Group was receiving operating royalties from the Tulawaka mining property operated by
African Barrick Gold which were recognized in the period in which they are realized, when
collection was reasonably assured and when the Company was able to estimate the amount with
enough accuracy.
(k) Leases:
All leases are classified as operating leases and as such the leased assets are not recognized in the
Company’s consolidated statements of financial position.
Payments made under operating leases are recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.
(l) Finance income and finance costs:
Interest revenues are registered under the effective interest method in the profit or loss.
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Interests received and interests paid are classified under operating activities in the consolidated
statements of cash flows.

(m) Income taxes:
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are
recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items
recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is not recognized for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and
jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. In addition, deferred tax is not recognized for taxable temporary differences
arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred taxes are recognized as income or expense in profit or loss except to the extent that tax
arises from business combinations and transactions recognized in equity. Therefore, when
deferred taxes relate to equity items, a backwards tracing is necessary to determine the
adjustment to tax
For this purpose, the accounting policy of the Company is to first allocate changes in the
recognition of deferred tax assets based on their expected maturity date.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized
simultaneously.
A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences, to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.
(n) Refundable credit on mining duties and refundable tax credit related to resources:
The Company is eligible for a refundable credit on mining duties under the Québec Mining
Duties Act. This refundable credit on mining duties is equal to 8% of expenses incurred for
mining activities in Québec for the current period and 7.5% for the comparative period. The
accounting treatment for refundable credit on mining duties depends on Management’s intention
to go into production in the future or rather to sell its mining properties to another mining
producer once the technical feasibility and the economic viability of the properties have been
demonstrated. This assessment is made at the level of each mining property. In the first case, the
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credit on mining duties is recorded as an income tax recovery under IAS 12, Income Taxes,
which generates at the same time a deferred tax liability and deferred tax expense since the
exploration and evaluation assets have no more tax basis following the Company’s election to
claim the refundable credit. In the second case, it is expected that no mining duties will be paid in
the future, accordingly the credit on mining duties is recorded as a government grant under IAS
20, Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance, which is
recorded against exploration and evaluation assets.
The Company determined that it intended to go into production in the future for Crevier property.
Therefore, it treats the mining tax credit on this property under IAS 12, Income Taxes. For other
properties, the mining tax credits are accounted for under IAS 20, Accounting for Government
Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance.
The Company is also eligible for a refundable tax credit related to resources for mining industry
companies in relation to eligible expenses incurred. The refundable tax credit for resources
represents up to 38.75% of the amount of eligible expenses incurred and are recorded as a
government grant against exploration and evaluation assets.
Credits related to resources recognized against exploration and evaluation expenditures are
recorded at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received and the
Group will comply with the conditions associated with the grant. They will be recognized in
profit or loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the related assets.
(o) Earnings per share:
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its common shares
issued. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to common shareholders
of the Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
period, adjusted for own shares held. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss
attributable to common shareholders and the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential common shares,
which comprise warrants and share options granted to employees.
(p) Segment reporting:
The Company determined that it had only one operating segment, i.e. the mining exploration.
(q) New standards and interpretations adopted during the period:
In 2011, the IASB published IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement. This norm prescribes a unique
valuation framework for the fair value measurement and it specifies the information that shall be
provided with respect to financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. This new norm
consolidates the definition of Fair Value and also introduces new concepts, especially the
“optimal use” and the “main markets” for non-financial assets and liabilities. IFRS 13 contains
additional requirements, in particular a more elaborated presentation with regards to the fair
value of the financial instruments in the interim and annual financial statements and the
presentation of the additional information in the annual financial statements for non-financial
assets and liabilities. At the first quarter of 2013, the Company applied IFRS 13 on a prospective
manner. IFRS 13 adoption did not have any impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.
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In 2013, the Company adopted IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and IFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities. The adoption of those standards did not have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
In addition, the Company adopted IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements. IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements,
replaces the guidance in IAS 31, Interest in Joint Ventures. Under IFRS 11, joint arrangements
are now classified as either joint operations or joint ventures, depending upon the rights and
obligations of the parties to the arrangement. When making this assessment, the Company
considers the structure of the arrangements, the legal form of any separate vehicles, the
contractual terms of the arrangements and other facts and circumstances. The interests held by
the Company in joint Agreements have been classified as joint operations. Notwithstanding the
reclassification, the contributions continue to be accounted by considering the share of the
Company in the assets, liabilities, incomes or expenses undertaken jointly. IFRS 11 adoption did
not have any impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
(r) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted:
(i)

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments:

In November 2009, the IASB issued IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 (2009)), and in
October 2010, the IASB published amendments to IFRS 9 (IFRS 9 (2010)).
In November 2013, the IASB issued a new general hedge accounting standard, which forms part
of IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2013). The new standard removes the January 1, 2015
effective date of IFRS 9. The new mandatory effective date will be determined once the
classification and measurement and impairment phases of IFRS 9 are finalized.
IFRS 9 (2009) introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. IFRS 9 (2010) introduces additional changes relating to financial liabilities.
IFRS 9 (2013) includes a new general hedge accounting standard which will align hedge
accounting more closely with risk management.
The Company does not intend to adopt IFRS 9 (2009), IFRS 9 (2010) or IFRS 9 (2013) in its
consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning on January 1, 2014.
(ii)

IFRIC 21, Levies:

In May 2013, the IASB issued IFRIC 21, Levies.
This IFRIC is effective for annual periods commencing on or after January 1, 2014 and is to be
applied retrospectively.
The IFRIC provides guidance on accounting for levies in accordance with the requirements of
IAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.
The Company intends to adopt IFRIC 21 in its consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning January 1, 2014. The extent of the impact of adoption of the amendments has
not yet been determined.
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(iii)

Amendments to IAS 32, Offsetting Financial Assets and Liabilities:

In December 2011, the IASB published Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. The
effective date for the amendments to IAS 32 is annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2014. These amendments are to be applied retrospectively.
The amendments to IAS 32 clarify that an entity currently has a legally enforceable right to setoff if that right is:
 not contingent on a future event; and
 enforceable both in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the entity and all counterparties.
The amendments to IAS 32 also clarify when a settlement mechanism provides for net settlement
or gross settlement that is equivalent to net settlement. The Company intends to adopt the
amendments to IAS 32 in its consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning
January 1, 2014. The extent of the impact of adoption of the amendments has not yet been
determined.

DIVIDEND POLICY
The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividends on its common shares since
incorporation. Any decision to pay dividends to the Company’s common shareholders will be
made by the Board of Directors based on its assessment of the Company’s financial position,
taking into account the financial requirements to ensure its future growth and other factors that
the Board might deem pertinent under the circumstances.
DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURE
The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company are in charge of
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures, as defined by Multilateral
Instrument 52-109 of the Canadian Securities Administrators.
An evaluation has been conducted to measure the effectiveness of controls and procedures used
for the preparation of reporting documents. Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures were effective
and well-designed at the year ended December 31, 2013 and, more specifically, that the design of
such controls and procedures provides reasonable assurance that they are advised of material
information relating to the Company during the period in which these reporting documents are
prepared.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting
The chief Executive Officer and Chief financial Officer of the Company are in charge of
establishing and maintaining an adequate internal control system in regard to financial reporting.
Management has evaluated the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.
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Management as well as the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer conclude, as
at December 31,12,2013 that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was
effective in that it provides reasonable assurance as to the reliability of the Company’s financial
reporting and the preparation of its financial statements for disclosure purposes in accordance
with IFRS.
Changes in internal Control over Financial Reporting
No changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting occurred during the period
ended December 31, 2012 materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect,
internal control over financial reporting.
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
At the date of the preparation of the Management Discussion and Analysis there was no
subsequent event to report.

OUTLOOK
For the third consecutive year, most junior exploration companies saw their market
capitalizations fall and stagnate at their lowest level in 2013, and we were no exception.
In 2013, large and mid-tier mine operators focused their activities on reducing and or avoiding
losses. Once they have stabilized their revenues, and control their cost, their focus should shift to
renewing their resources. Less than 30% of the total reserves and resources of the large and midtier companies reportedly remain undeveloped as per (tickerscore.com, February 2, 2014), and
this figure could be even lower if resources with environmental, social acceptability or permitting
issues are excluded. Companies with very little in their pipeline will therefore likely be looking
to acquire gold assets. This will be especially true given that the acquisition targets are at their
lowest valuations in years compared to the cost of exploring for them.
Junior exploration companies with discoveries or feasibility-stage projects will be prime
acquisition targets. As such, they should be the first to receive inquiry by potential investors, and
consequently should be the first to see their valuations rise. We believe that by pursuing a path
of prudent development, as we did in 2013, MDN with a high-quality gold portfolio in Tanzania,
along with our feasibility-stage Crevier niobium-tantalum asset, should be amongst those junior
companies to be closely considered by potential investors. That is why we will continue to
prudently develop our assets in 2014 and seek the funds needed to accelerate this development.
Since the closure of the operations of the Tulawaka mine, the company does not received
royalties from the cash generated by the mine. The company's future results will be influenced by
the search for strategic partners and our ability to raise public funds. In 2014, for properties in
Tanzania, minimum exploration work will be carried out to ensure the maintenance and the
validity of the properties. We believe that MDN has gold assets of quality in Tanzania and we
continue looking for partners in 2014. The Crevier asset in Quebec is secure for many years and
MDN does not have work obligations in the immediate future to maintain the property in good
standing. This tantalum - niobium asset is at an advance feasibility stage. There are
approximately 12 months of work to complete the feasibility study. The final work will start
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when MDN will have obtained the necessary funds for this work.
Ikungu: one of the most advanced gold projects in Tanzania, with growth potential
The Ikungu project is a 2-km long by 300-m deep mineralized zone with excellent growth
potential. In addition, many of the gold intersections have a sampled average grade of over 6 g/t
Au. In a falling gold market, investors prefer the higher-grade gold projects.
It should be recalled that 53 holes have been drilled to date in earlier exploration programs along
the four-kilometre long Ikungu structure. These holes identified a mineralized zone that extends
more than two kilometres along strike and 300 metres vertically. Four higher-grade gold zones
with a minimum horizontal thickness of two metres have been delineated, based on the drill
intersections in holes IKD-45 (8.6 g/t Au over 14.78 m) on Section 2230mE, IKD-48 (3.11 g/t
Au over 9.50 m) on Section 2830mE, IKD-51 (3.39 g/t Au over 7.05 m) on Section 3190mE and
IKD-36 (13.22 g/t Au over 4.62m) on Section 3610mE.
At Ikungu East: Volcanic belt discovered in 2012
In 2012, MDN discovered a volcanic belt more than 15 km long. MDN controls an area of 133
km2. In 2013, field work delineated four areas where the soil samples are enriched in gold. These
four anomalies are between 1.5 km and 3 km long. These drill targets have synergy with the
Ikungu project. A discovery would make this area a new mining district.
Nikonga: A new discovery in Tanzania
NKD-02:
NKD-05:
NKD-04:

12.3 g/t Au over 4.2 m
10.9 g/t Au over 4.9 m
9.9 g/t Au over 4.2 m
17.3 g/t Au over 1.1 m

The 2013 work outlined a circular area of gold, copper and molybdenum soil enrichment. This
anomaly coincides with all the 2012 gold intersections over a 2-km diameter, suggesting that
these are part of the same system.
Detailed mapping done in 2013 allows a parallel to be drawn with the types of gold deposit in
Timmins, Canada, particularly those of the Hollinger-McIntire, Dome and Pamour mines, which
are associated with porphyry dykes and sometimes a porphyry intrusive. Nikonga has the same
characteristics as these world-class deposits, which lie at the edge of a discontinuity, at the
contact between volcanics and sediments.
Crevier: On the verge of becoming one of the best development projects in Quebec
With last November’s changes to the feasibility study production scenario, confirmation by
supplementary metallurgical testing would make the Crevier project one of the best projects to be
developed in Quebec in the next five years. It could be:



In the highest quartile in terms of project return, and
In the lowest quartile in terms of capital investment.
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The new production scenario makes Crevier technically viable and one of the most competitive
projects in the world.
In the first quarter of 2013, we received COREM’s final flotation report, which confirmed a
stable recovery. These results, combined with the SGS hydrometallurgy results from 2012, give
us an overall view of the mineral processing required to produce niobium and tantalum.
Supplementary metallurgy work is needed to optimize the current results. However, the tantalum
price increase associated with the possibility of producing ferroniobium allows us to reorient the
feasibility study based on a different approach, namely the production of three products: niobium
oxide, ferroniobium and tantalum oxide.
The current feasibility study will be reorganized along the following lines:


Production of ferroniobium, for which there is a larger market than niobium oxide,
enabling us to increase mine production from 4,000 to 6,000 tonnes per day;
 This higher mine production results in higher tantalum production, thus enhancing the
leverage gained from improved tantalum prices;
 Production of niobium oxide and ferroniobium gives us access to a larger market, thus
facilitating the sale of niobium.
This increase in production will lead to a shorter payback period and higher annual cash flow and
should generate better project economics overall compared to the 2010 Preliminary Economic
Assessment.
Given these new results and new production scenario, we have recontacted various finance
companies and potential development partners since last November. A number of confidentiality
agreements have been signed with various potential partners, who were given technical
information on the project.
Future results
The Company’s future results will be influenced mainly by the loss of the royalty income
received from its 30% participation in the Tulawaka gold mine, following its closure. . The
research of strategic partners as well as agreements with those potential partners for its
exploration assets in Tanzania and the Crevier asset in Quebec are crucial to the future on the
Company..

(S)

(S)

Marc Boisvert, ing.

Yves Therrien, CPA,CMA

Chairman & CEO

Vice President, Finance

Montreal, Canada
MARCH 21, 2014
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FINANCIAL SUMMARIES
The tables below provide a summary of the main financial information on the Company for the
last three years and for the last eight quarters. The Company believes that the data for these
quarters have been prepared in the same manner as the annual audited financial statements.
FOR THE LAST THREE YEARS
2013
Operating royalties from Tulawaka mine
Finance Income
(Net Loss) income
(Net loss) income per share
Addition on Exploration and evaluation assets
Accounts receivable & Mining tax receivables
Total assets
Non-current liabilities
Shareholders’ equity
Total

2012

2011

$313,144
$82,907
$19,514
($5,791,668) ($12,862,510)
($0.127)
($0.057)
$3,265,453
$1,032,113
$867,176 $1,262,059
$30,345,795 $36,167,533

$6,294,550
$248,512
$1,675,414
$0.016
$5,076,621
$5,810,914
$49,087,267

$462,224

$1,173,844

$29,130,044 $34,164,743

$1,271,443
$47,312,724

FOR THE LAST EIGHT QUARTERS

Total revenues net of finance
expenses
Net loss
Net loss per share

1st quarter

2nd quarter

3rd quarter

2013
4th quarter

$8,611

$1,456

($731)

($96,836)

($499,757)

($405,299)

($0.005)

($0.004)

($0.01)

($0.095)

1 quarter

2 quarter

3 quarter

2012
4 quarter

($50,632)

$362,818

($39,402)

$5 265

st

Total revenues net of finance
expenses
Net income loss
Net income loss per share

($290,795) ($4,595,817)

nd

($1,636,992)
($0.016)

rd

th

($583,820) ($1,012,463) ($9,629,235)
($0.006)
($0.01)
($0.095)

Note: the loss in the 4th quarter are mainly due to write off of prospecting, exploration and
evaluation and mining properties.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Shareholders of MDN Inc.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of MDN Inc., which comprise
the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the
consolidated statements of comprehensive (loss) income, changes in equity and cash flows for the
years then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
KPMG LLP is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG
network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative
("KPMG International"), a Swiss entity.
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of MDN Inc. as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards.
Observation
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that MDN Inc. is still in the exploration stage, so there is no income from operations.
Therefore, MDN Inc. depends on its ability to raise funding to meet its obligations and commitments in
the normal course of business. These conditions, taken together with other matters described in
Note 1, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
MDN Inc. to continue its operations.

March 21, 2014
Montréal, Canada

*CPA auditor, CA, public accountancy permit No. A115894
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MDN INC.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
December 31, 2013 and 2012
2013

2012

Assets
Current assets:
Cash
Temporary investments (note 4)
Accounts receivable (note 5)
Mining taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses

$

Total current assets
Non-current assets:
Mining properties (note 6)
Exploration and evaluation assets (note 7)
Property and equipment (note 9)
Total non-current assets
Total assets

274,943
1,700,000
727,569
139,607
23,745

$

1,374,545
3,058,892
1,123,964
138,095
29,415

2,865,864

5,724,911

8,510,000
18,899,201
70,730

8,749,999
21,608,818
83,805

27,479,931

30,442,622

$

30,345,795

$

36,167,533

$

659,478
94,049

$

728,946
100,000

Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities:
Trade accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Current portion of other long-term liability (note 10)
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities:
Other long-term liability (note 10)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 15)
Total non-current liabilities
Equity:
Share capital (note 11)
Contributed surplus
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income
Deficit
Total equity attributable to shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Total equity

753,527

828,946

−
462,224

79,252
1,094,592

462,224

1,173,844

63,813,193
6,569,993
66,655
(43,174,393)

63,813,193
6,562,087
(755,708)
(37,382,725)

27,275,448

32,236,847

1,854,596

1,927,896

29,130,044

34,164,743

Commitments and contingencies (notes 20 and 21)
Total liabilities and equity

$

30,345,795

$

The notes on pages 5 to 36 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
On behalf of the Board:
Director
Director
1

36,167,533

MDN INC.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Loss) Income
Years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012
2013
Operating royalties from the Tulawaka mine

$

−

2012
$

313,144

Administrative expenses (note 13)
Management fees related to the Tulawaka mine
Write-off of exploration and evaluation
assets and mining properties (note 8)

1,350,451
222,010

2,201,457
619,091

4,838,864

8,743,117

Loss before net finance cost and income taxes

(6,411,325)

(11,250,521)

(19,514)
107,014

(82,907)
118,002

87,500

35,095

Net finance cost (finance income) (note 14):
Finance income
Finance cost

Loss before income taxes
Income tax expense (recovery) (note 15):
Current taxes
Deferred taxes

Net loss

(6,498,825)

(11,285,616)

(1,490)
(632,367)

(54,622)
1,652,592

(633,857)

1,597,970

(5,864,968)

Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Foreign currency translation differences of foreign operations

(12,883,586)

822,363

(283,863)

Net comprehensive loss

$

(5,042,605)

$ (13,167,449)

Net loss attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

$

(5,791,668)
(73,300)

$ (12,862,510)
(21,076)

Total comprehensive loss attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

$

(4,969,305)
(73,300)

$ (13,146,373)
(21,076)

Basic and diluted net loss per share

$

(0.057)

Weighted average of outstanding shares - basic and diluted

101,527,220

$

(0.127)
101,527,220

The notes on pages 5 to 36 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MDN INC.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
Years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Number
of shares
outstanding
Balance, January 1, 2012

101,527,220

Share
capital
$

63,813,193

Contributed
surplus
$

6,542,619

Share-based payments

–

–

Foreign currency translation
differences of foreign
operations

–

–

–

Net loss

–

–

–

Accumulated
other
comprehensive
(loss) income
$

(471,845)
–

19,468

(283,863)
–

Deficit
$ (24,520,215)

Total equity
attributable to
shareholders
of the Company

Non-controlling
interests

$

$

45,363,752

1,948,972

Total
equity
$

47,312,724

–

19,468

–

19,468

–

(283,863)

–

(283,863)

(12,862,510)

(12,862,510)

(21,076)

(12,883,586)

Balance, December 31, 2012

101,527,220

$

63,813,193

$

6,562,087

$

(755,708)

$ (37,382,725)

$

32,236,847

$

1,927,896

$

34,164,743

Balance, January 1, 2013

101,527,220

$

63,813,193

$

6,562,087

$

(755,708)

$ (37,382,725)

$

32,236,847

$

1,927,896

$

34,164,743

Share-based payments

–

–

Foreign currency translation
differences of foreign
operations

–

–

–

Net loss

–

–

–

Balance, December 31, 2013

101,527,220

$

63,813,193

–

7,906

$

6,569,993

822,363
–
$

66,655

The notes on pages 5 to 36 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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–

7,906

–

7,906

–

822,363

–

822,363

(5,791,668)
$ (43,174,393)

(5,791,668)
$

27,275,448

(73,300)
$

1,854,596

(5,864,968)
$

29,130,044

MDN INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012
2013
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Net loss
Adjustments for:
Stock-based payments
Amortization of property and equipment
Write-off of exploration and evaluation
assets and mining properties
Other income related to flow-through shares
Interest income
Gain on sale of investments
Accretion expense related to the other long-term liability
Net foreign exchange loss
Income taxes
Payments related to the other long-term liability
Change in non-cash working capital item
Interest received

$ (5,864,968)

2012

$ (12,883,586)

7,906
15,555

Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Acquisition of investments
Disposal of investments
Acquisition of property and equipment
Additions to mining properties
Increase in exploration and evaluation assets
Proceeds related to exploration and evaluation assets

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash denominated
in foreign currency

19,468
16,716

4,838,864
–
(19,255)
(259)
14,796
32,744
(633,857)
(100,000)
767,363
(43,323)

8,743,117
(9,366)
(82,907)
–
22,809
80,935
1,597,970
(100,000)
4,938,663
103,362

(897,788)

2,447,181

(1,154,192)
2,514,180
(10,050)
(92,435)
(1,483,590)
–

(1,705,403)
2,097,000
(56,663)
(92,566)
(2,982,887)
10,000

(226,087)

(2,730,519)

24,273

Net variation in cash

(1,728)

(1,099,602)

Cash, beginning of year

(285,066)

1,374,545

Cash, end of year

$

274,943

1,659,611
$

The notes on pages 5 to 36 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1,374,545

MDN INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

1. Reporting entity:
MDN Inc. (the “Company”) is a company domiciled in Canada, incorporated under Part 1A of the
Québec Companies Act. The common shares are traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange under
the symbol MDN. The address of the Company’s registered office is 1010 de la Gauchetière West
Street, Suite 680, Montréal, Québec, Canada.
The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended
December 31, 2013 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries, MDN Tanzania Ltd. (100%
interest) and Crevier Mineral Inc. (“CMI”) (72.5% interest) (together referred to as the “Group” and
individually as “Group entities”).
The Group is primarily involved in the exploration of mineral resources in the province of Québec,
in Canada, and in Tanzania.
Although the Company has taken steps to verify the titles to mineral properties in which it has an
interest, in accordance with industry standards for the current stage of exploration of such
properties, these procedures do not guarantee the Group's titles. Property titles may be subject to
unregistered prior agreements and non-compliance with regulatory requirements.
Recovery of amounts indicated under mining properties and the related deferred exploration
costs are subject to the discovery of economically recoverable reserves, the Company’s ability to
obtain the financing required to complete development, and profitable future production or the
proceeds from the sale of such assets.
On February 13, 2013, African Barrick Gold decided not to extend the mine life beyond midyear
2013. On November 15, 2013, African Barrick Gold signed an agreement with STAMICO, the
mining company of the Tanzanian government, to acquire the Tulawaka Gold Mine and certain
exploration licenses around Tulawaka for a consideration of U.S. $4.5 million. Under the joint
venture agreement with African Barrick Gold, the Company should continue to receive its share of
30% in the excess cash flows generated by the operating activities of the Tuluwaka Gold mine in
2013, the realization of non cash working capital and the cash generated by the sale of assets.
However, after analysis of operating losses since 2012, other operating expenses, sale of
equipment and the result of this transaction, the Company does not expect to get benefits or
assume any obligation under this transaction. Thus, no fee from operations of Tulawaka mine
was recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
December 31, 2013 and no amount receivable has been recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at December 31, 2013.
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MDN INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
Years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

1. Reporting entity (continued):
As the Company no longer generates revenue, the Company must periodically obtain new funds
to continue its operations and, despite the ability of the Company to raise funds in the past, there
is no guarantee that it will be able to obtain financing in the future. Management expects that the
funds of the Company as at December 31, 2013 are just sufficient to meet its budget for
administrative costs and minimum expenses related to mining properties for the year 2014. The
Company must find additional funding in the next year to meet its short-term obligations and to
cover administrative costs and future exploration activities.
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The
application of the assumption of going concern may be inappropriate because the above
conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the
ability of the Company to continue its operations. These consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments that should be made to the carrying value of assets and liabilities if the
assumption of going concern proves to be unfounded.
2. Basis of preparation:
Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as published by the International Accounting Standard
Board ("IASB").
The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on
March 21, 2014.
Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.
Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the
Company’s functional currency.
Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. One of
these assumptions is that the Company will be able to continue its operations. These estimates
are based on the knowledge that management has of current events and actions that the
Company may undertake in the future.
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MDN INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
Years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

2. Basis of preparation (continued):
Use of estimates and judgements (continued)
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any
future periods affected.
Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements is included
in Note 3 (d) - determination of capitalizable costs as exploration and evaluation assets - and in
Note 3 (n), which relates to the capitalization of refundable credit for mining duties where the
Company judged it would start production in the near future on its Crevier property.
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following notes:
●

Notes 3, 6, 7 and 8 - recoverability of mining properties and exploration and evaluation
assets;

●

Note 3 - assessment of refundable tax credits for resources and credit for mining duties;

●

Notes 3 and 15 - recoverability of deferred income tax assets;

●

Notes 5 and 21 - recoverability of sales tax receivable from subsidiary MDN Tanzania Ltd.

3. Significant accounting policies:
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these consolidated financial statements.
(a) Basis of consolidation:
Subsidiaries
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiaries, MDN Tanzania Ltd. (100% interest) and Crevier Minerals Inc. (“CMI”) (72.5%
interest).
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. The financial statements of subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
when necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the Company.
A subsidiary which is fully consolidated but not fully owned by the Company results in a noncontrolling interest that is present separately on the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income and the consolidated statements of financial position.
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MDN INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
Years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

3. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(a) Basis of consolidation (continued):
Joint arrangement
The Company holds interest in mining properties through joints arrangements. A joint
arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control. Joint control
is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control. The interests held by the Company have been classified as joint operation, because
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets, and
obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Those parties are called joint
operators. The Company assesses its rights and obligations by considering the structure and
legal form of the arrangement, the terms agreed by the parties in the contractual arrangement
and, when relevant, other facts and circumstances. The Company records its interest in those
joint operations by recording its proportionnal share of assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses.
Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from
intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
(b) Foreign currency:
Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of
Group entities at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the
functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on
monetary items is the difference between amortized cost in the functional currency at the
beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and
the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the
reporting period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at
the date that the fair value was determined. Foreign currency differences arising on
retranslation are recognized in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(b) Foreign currency (continued):
Foreign operations
The assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiary, of which the functional currency is the
US dollar, are translated to Canadian dollars at the exchange rate at the reporting date. The
income and expenses are translated to Canadian dollars at exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions.
Foreign currency differences are recognized in other comprehensive income in the
cumulative translation account.
When a foreign operation is disposed of, the relevant amount in the cumulative amount of
foreign currency translation differences is transferred to profit or loss as part of the profit or
loss on disposal. On the partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
relevant proportion of such cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interest. In
any other partial disposal of a foreign operation, the relevant proportion is reclassified to profit
or loss.
Foreign exchange gains or losses arising from a monetary item receivable from or payable to
a foreign operating, the settlement of which is neither planned nor likely to occur in the
foreseeable future and which in substance is considered to form part of the net investment in
the foreign operation, are recognized in other comprehensive income in the cumulative
amount of foreign currency translation differences.
(c) Financial instruments:
Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs, and their subsequent valuation is dependent on their
classification.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.
The Company classified its cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments as loans
and receivables.
Financial liabilities
The Company classified its trade accounts payable and accrued liabilities and other longterm liability as financial liabilities at amortized cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(d) Mining properties and exploration and evaluation assets:
Mining properties correspond to acquired interests in mining exploration permits/claims which
include the rights to explore for, mine, extract and sell all minerals, metals and diamonds from
such claims.
All pre-exploration costs, i.e. costs incurred prior to obtaining the legal right to undertake
exploration and evaluation activities on an area of interest, are expensed as incurred.
Once the legal right to explore has been acquired, exploration and evaluation expenditures
are capitalized in respect of each identifiable area of interest until the technical feasibility and
commercial viability of extracting a mineral resource are demonstrable.
Costs incurred include appropriate technical and administrative overheads.
Exploration and evaluation assets and mining properties are carried at historical cost less any
impairment losses recognized.
When technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting a mineral resource are
demonstrable for an area of interest, the Group stops capitalizing exploration and evaluation
costs for that area, tests recognized exploration and evaluation assets for impairment and
reclassifies any unimpaired exploration and evaluation assets either as tangible and
intangible mine development assets according to the nature of the assets.
(e) Property, plant and equipment:
Items of equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the asset. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of equipment are recognized in profit or
loss as incurred.
Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or
other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value.
The depreciation is recorded using the declining balance methods at the following annual
rates; insofar as it best reflects the expected pattern of realization of future economic benefits
associated with the asset:

Exploration equipment
Furniture and equipment
Computer equipment

20%
20%
30%

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial yearend and adjusted accordingly.
10
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(f) Impairment:
Financial assets
Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective
evidence that they are impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates
that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event
had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated
reliably.
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated
as the difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses are recognized in
profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against receivables. Interest on the
impaired asset continues to be recognized through the unwinding of the discount. When a
subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
The carrying amounts of mining properties and exploration and evaluation assets are
assessed for impairment only when indicators of impairment exist, typically when one of the
following circumstances apply:
-

Exploration rights have expired/will expire in the near future;

-

No future substantive exploration expenditures are budgeted;

-

No commercially viable quantities discovered and exploration and evaluation activities
will be discontinued;

-

Exploration and evaluation assets are unlikely to be fully recovered from successful
development or sale.

If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
Mining properties and exploration and evaluation assets are also assessed for impairment
upon the transfer of exploration and evaluation assets to development assets regardless of
whether facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the exploration and
evaluation assets is in excess of their recoverable amount.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(f) Impairment (continued):
Non-financial assets (continued)
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose
of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating
unit” or “CGU”). The level identified by the Group for the purposes of testing exploration and
evaluation assets and mining properties for impairment corresponds to each property.
An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognized in respect of CGUs are allocated to the assets in the unit (“group of units”)
on a pro rata basis.
Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.
(g) Provisions:
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
(h) Share capital and warrants:
Common shares
Common shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
common shares and share options are recognized as a deduction from deficit, net of any tax
effects.
Flow-through shares
The Canadian tax legislation permits an entity to issue securities to investors whereby the
deductions for tax purposes relating to resource expenditures may be claimed by the
investors and not by the entity. These securities are referred to as flow-through shares. The
Company finances a portion of its exploration programs with flow-through share issues.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(h) Share capital and warrants (continued):
Flow-through shares (continued)
At the time of share issuance, the Company allocates the proceeds between share capital
and an obligation to deliver the tax deductions, which is recorded as a liability for flow-through
share obligation. The Company estimates the fair value of the obligation using the residual
method, i.e. by comparing the price of the flow-through share to the quoted price of common
share at the date of the financing announcement.
A Company may renounce the deductions for tax purposes under either what is referred to as
the “general” method or the “look-back” method.
When tax deductions are renounced under the general method, and the Company has the
expectation of renouncing and has capitalized the expenditures during the current year, then
the entity records a deferred tax liability with the corresponding charge of income tax
expense. The obligation is reduced to zero, with a corresponding income recorded.
When tax deductions are renounced under the look-back method, the Company records a
deferred tax liability with a corresponding charge to income tax expense when expenditures
are made and capitalized. At that time, the obligation would be reduced to zero, with a
corresponding income recorded.
Share issuance costs
Share issuance costs are charged to deficit in the same period during which they are
incurred.
(i) Share-based payments:
The grant date fair value of share-based payment awards granted to employees and directors
is recognized as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in contributed surplus,
over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The
amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the
related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the
amount ultimately recognized as an expense is based on the number of awards that do meet
the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.
(j) Revenue:
The Group was receiving operating royalties from the Tulawaka mining property operated by
African Barrick Gold which were recognized in the period in which they were realized, when
collection was reasonably assured and when the Company was able to estimate the amount
with enough accuracy.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(k) Leases:
All leases are classified as operating leases and as such the leased assets are not
recognized in the Company’s consolidated statements of financial position.
Payments made under operating leases are recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.
(l) Finance income and finance costs:
Interest revenues are registered under the effective interest method in the profit or loss.
Interests received and interests paid are classified under operating activities in the
consolidated statements of cash flows.
(m) Income taxes:
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are
recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that they relate to a business combination, or
items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for the following temporary differences: the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, and differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. In addition, deferred tax is not recognized for taxable
temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred taxes are recognized as income or expense in profit or loss except to the extent that
tax arises from business combinations and transactions recognized in equity. Therefore,
when deferred taxes relate to equity items, a backwards tracing is necessary to determine the
adjustment to taxes (e.g. change in tax rates and change in valuation allowance) that should
be recorded in equity.
For this purpose, the accounting policy of the Company is to first allocate changes in the
recognition of deferred tax assets based on their expected maturity date.

14

MDN INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
Years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

3. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(m) Income taxes (continued):
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes
levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but
they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and
liabilities will be realized simultaneously.
A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses and deductible temporary
differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.
(n) Refundable credit on mining duties and refundable tax credit related to resources:
The Company is eligible for a refundable credit on mining duties under the Québec Mining
Duties Act. This refundable credit on mining duties is equal to 8% of expenses incurred for
mining activities in Québec for the current period and 7.5% for the comparative period. The
accounting treatment for refundable credit on mining duties depends on management’s
intention to go into production in the future or rather to sell its mining properties to another
mining producer once the technical feasibility and the economic viability of the properties
have been demonstrated. This assessment is made at the level of each mining property. In
the first case, the credit on mining duties is recorded as an income tax recovery under
IAS 12, Income Taxes, which generates at the same time a deferred tax liability and deferred
tax expense since the exploration and evaluation assets have no more tax basis following the
Company’s election to claim the refundable credit. In the second case, it is expected that no
mining duties will be paid in the future, accordingly the credit on mining duties is recorded as
a government grant under IAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance, which is recorded against exploration and evaluation assets.
The Company determined that it intended to go into production in the future for Crevier
property. Therefore, it treats the mining tax credit on this property under IAS 12, Income
Taxes. For other properties, the mining tax credits are accounted for under IAS 20,
Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance.
The Company is also eligible for a refundable tax credit related to resources for mining
industry companies in relation to eligible expenses incurred. The refundable tax credit for
resources represents up to 38.75% of the amount of eligible expenses incurred and are
recorded as a government grant against exploration and evaluation assets.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(n) Refundable credit on mining duties and refundable tax credit related to resources (continued):
Credits related to resources and credits on mining duties recognized against exploration and
evaluation expenditures are recorded at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and the Group will comply with the conditions associated with the grant.
They will be recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the
related assets.
(o) Earnings per share:
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its common
shares issued. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to common
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period, adjusted for own shares held. Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to common shareholders and the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all
dilutive potential common shares, which comprise warrants and share options granted to
employees.
(p) Segment reporting:
The Company determined that it had only one operating segment, i.e. the mining exploration.
(q) New standards and interpretations adopted during the period:
In 2011, the IASB published IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement. This norm prescribes a
unique valuation framework for the fair value measurement and it specifies the information
that shall be provided with respect to financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. This
new norm consolidates the definition of Fair Value and also introduces new concepts,
especially the “optimal use” and the “main markets” for non-financial assets and liabilities.
IFRS 13 contains additional requirements, in particular a more elaborated presentation with
regard to the fair value of the financial instruments in the interim and annual financial
statements and the presentation of the additional information in the annual financial
statements for non-financial assets and liabilities. At the first quarter of 2013, the Company
applied IFRS 13 on a prospective manner. IFRS 13 adoption did not have any impact on the
computation of fair values recognized in the consolidated financial statements.
In 2013, the Company adopted IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and IFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities. The adoption of those standards did not have a
material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(q) New standards and interpretations adopted during the period (continued):
In addition, in 2013, the Company adopted IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements. IFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements, replaces the guidance in IAS 31, Interest in Joint Ventures. Under IFRS 11,
joint arrangements are now classified as either joint operations or joint ventures, depending
upon the rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangement. When making this
assessment, the Company considers the structure of the arrangements, the legal form of any
separate vehicles, the contractual terms of the arrangements and other facts and
circumstances. The interests held by the Company in joint Agreements have been classified
as joint operations. Notwithstanding the reclassification, the contributions continue to be
accounted by considering the share of the Company in the assets, liabilities, income or
expenses undertaken jointly. IFRS 11 adoption did not have any impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.
(r) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted:
(i) IFRS 9, Financial Instruments:
In November 2009, the IASB issued IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 (2009)), and
in October 2010, the IASB published amendments to IFRS 9 (IFRS 9 (2010)).
In November 2013, the IASB issued a new general hedge accounting standard, which
forms part of IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2013). The new standard removes the
January 1, 2015 effective date of IFRS 9. The new mandatory effective date will be
determined once the classification and measurement and impairment phases of IFRS 9
are finalized.
IFRS 9 (2009) introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets. IFRS 9 (2010) introduces additional changes relating to financial
liabilities.
IFRS 9 (2013) includes a new general hedge accounting standard which will align hedge
accounting more closely with risk management.
The Company does not intend to adopt IFRS 9 (2009), IFRS 9 (2010) or IFRS 9 (2013) in
its consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning on January 1, 2014.

17

MDN INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
Years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

3. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(r) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued):
(ii) IFRIC 21, Levies:
In May 2013, the IASB issued IFRIC 21, Levies. This IFRIC is effective for annual periods
commencing on or after January 1, 2014 and is to be applied retrospectively.The IFRIC
provides guidance on accounting for levies in accordance with the requirements of
IAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The Company intends
to adopt IFRIC 21 in its consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning
January 1, 2014. The extent of the impact of adoption of the amendments has not yet
been determined.
(iii) Amendments to IAS 32, Offsetting Financial Assets and Liabilities:
In December 2011, the IASB published “Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities”. The effective date for the amendments to IAS 32 is annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2014. These amendments are to be applied retrospectively.
The amendments to IAS 32 clarify when an entity currently has a legally enforceable right
to set-off if and when a settlement mechanism provides for net settlement or gross
settlement that is equivalent to net settlement. The Company intends to adopt the
amendments to IAS 32 in its consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning January 1, 2014. The extent of the impact of adoption of the amendments has
not yet been determined.
4. Temporary investments:
2013

2012

Guaranteed investment certificates, variable rate of 1.00%
(1.00% as at December 31, 2012), maturing in May 2014

$ 1,000,000

$ 1,000,000

Guaranteed investment certificates, rate at 1.25% (1.95% as
at December 31, 2012), maturing in September 2016,
redeemable at the option of the Company once a month
without penalty

300,000

618,000

Guaranteed investment certificates, variable rate of 1.15%,
redeemable at any time, maturing in July 2014

400,000

Bonds, rates of 3.05% to 4.67% as at December 31, 2012 (i)

−
$ 1,700,000

18

−
1,440,892
$ 3,058,892
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4. Temporary investments (continued):
(i)

The Company has designated the bonds bought in the second quarter of 2013 as financial
assets available for sale. The Company acquired these bonds for the purpose of selling them
in the near term. These financial assets are measured at their fair values, without any
deduction for transaction costs that may incur on their sale. Gains or losses on the fair value
fluctuations of these assets are recognized in comprehensive income. During the fourth
quarter of 2013, the Company sold all of its obligations. At that time, the cumulative loss of
$449 previously recognized in other comprehensive income was reclassified to net income.

5. Accounts receivable:
2013
Tax credit related to resources
Sales tax receivable (note 21)
Other

2012

$

11,744
639,711
76,114

$

373,913
597,402
152,649

$

727,569

$

1,123,964

6. Mining properties:
Mining properties are detailed as follows:

Properties
Tanzania:
Ikungu
Nikonga
Simba (Isambara)
Québec:
Crevier
Isle Dieu (note 8)
Lac Shortt (note 8)
Lespérance (note 8)
Le Tac (note 8)
Samaqua (note 8)

Interest
at end

81 %
100
100
72.5
100
50
50
50
100

January 1,
2013

(i)

$

(ii)

250,883
45,707
645,251

Additions

$

8,749,999

19

51,860
29,613
−

$

−
1,468
−
−
−
9,494

7,481,515
24,180
170,461
78,000
43,052
10,950
$

Write-off
(note 8)

$

92,435

−
−
−

Effect of
foreign
exchange

December 31,
2013

$

$

−
(25,648)
(170,461)
(78,000)
(43,052)
(20,444)
$

(337,605)

5,171
−
−
−
−
−
−
−
−

$

5,171

307,914
75,320
645,251
7,481,515
−
−
−
−
−

$

8,510,000
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6. Mining properties (continued):

Properties
Tanzania:
Baraka (note 8)
Ikungu
Kunga (Viyonza)
(note 8)
Nikonga
Simba (Isambara)
Québec:
Crevier
Isle Dieu
Lac Shortt
Lespérance
Le Tac
MC Gold (note 8)
Samaqua

Interest
at end

January 1,
2012

90% - 100 %
70

$

65.9 - 100
100
100
72.5
100
50
50
50
‒
100

436,270
187,817
976,035
25,313
657,109

(ii)

7,481,515
24,180
170,461
78,000
43,052
100,000
10,950
$ 10,190,702

Write-off
(note 8)

Additions

$

34,314
64,730
2,642
20,394
‒
‒
‒
‒
‒
‒
‒
‒

$ 122,080

$

(462,018)
‒
(978,677)
‒
‒
‒
‒
‒
‒
‒
(100,000)
‒

$ (1,540,695)

Effect of
foreign
exchange

December 31,
2012

$

$

(8,566)
(1,664)
‒
‒
(11,858)

‒
45,707
645,251

‒
‒
‒
‒
‒
‒
‒
$ (22,088)

‒
250,883

7,481,515
24,180
170,461
78,000
43,052
‒
10,950
$

8,749,999

(i)

The cumulative exploration expenditures made on the Ikungu property has allowed the
Company to increase its interest by 11% in the property, for a total of 81% as of
December 31, 2013 (70% as at December 31, 2012).

(ii)

The amounts related to this property represent 100% of CMI capitalized costs because this
property is consolidated in the Company.
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7. Exploration and evaluation assets:
Exploration and evaluation assets by properties are detailed as follows:

Properties:
Tanzania:
Ikungu East
$
Ikungu
Nikonga
Simba (Isambara)
Tulawaka (note 8)
Québec:
Crevier
Des Meloïses
(note 8)
Isle Dieu (note 8)
Lac Shortt (note 8)
Lespérance (note 8)
Le Tac (note 8)
$

300,614
6,007,061
1,215,064
4,284,113
324,674

−
−
−
−
−

$

5,296,763

$

21,608,818

$

−
−
−
−
−

$

551,823
5,581,587
‒

$

‒
‒
‒

$

$ (4,501,259)

Additions

$

6,786 $
534,478
305,814

$

‒
‒
‒

7,835
2,390
1,212,497

4,318,261
308,078

‒
‒

‒
‒

35,799
17,190

‒
‒

(367,651)
‒
‒
‒
‒
‒

1,101,148
‒
‒
‒
‒
‒

‒
‒
‒
‒
‒
‒

(1,079)

41,516

651,290

‒

593,439
6,779,425
1,561,702
4,646,447
−

−

5,318,188
−
−
−
−
−

769,723

$

(5,010,328)
(946,667)
‒

(691,727)

18,899,201

December 31,
2012

(553,700) $
(4,909) $
‒
(109,004)
‒
(5,200)

‒
‒
‒

‒
‒
(10,000)
‒
‒
‒

31,141 $
400,397
92,699
246,252
(766)

Effect of
Write-off
foreign
(note 8) exchange

5,053,076
956,979
26,295

4,563,266
898,972
547,456
1,371,023
485,188
887,890

December 31,
2013

−
−
−
−
−

(898,972)
(537,456)
(1,371,023)
(485,188)
(887,890)

(10,194) $ 1,032,113

‒
‒
‒

$

−

31,619

−
−
−
−
−

898,972
537,456
1,371,023
485,188
887,890

−
−
−
−
(320,730)

261,684 $
371,967
253,939
116,082
(3,178)

(10,194)

Effect of
foreign
exchange

Write-off
(note 8)

Additions

Tax credits
January 1,
related to
(i)
2012 Proceeds resources

Properties:
Tanzania:
Baraka
(note 8)
Ikungu
Ikungu East
Kunga (Viyonza)
(note 8)
Msasa (note 8)
Nikonga
Simba
(Isambara)
Tulawaka
Québec:
Crevier
Des Meloïses
Isle Dieu
Lac Shortt
Lespérance
Le Tac
MC Gold
(note 8)

Tax credits
related to
resources

January 1,
2013

‒
6,007,061
300,614

(50,583)
(12,702)
(23,728)

‒
‒
1,215,064

(69,947)
(594)

4,284,113
324,674

‒
‒
‒
‒
‒
‒
‒

5,296,763
898,972
537,456
1,371,023
485,188
887,890
‒

$ 26,201,184 $ (10,000) $ (368,730) $ 3,265,453 $ (7,202,422) $ (276,667) $ 21,608,818
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7. Exploration and evaluation assets (continued):
(i)

On December 1, 2011, the Company signed an agreement with private company Big Bang
Ressources Ltée for the Isle Dieu property. The five-year, nine-month agreement allows the
Company to acquire 100% interest in the property in consideration of payments totalling
$3,060,000 and exploration work totalling $4,250,000. The Company would retain a 2% NSR
royalty on the property. This agreement may be terminated at any time, however the
exploration work will have to be recorded on behalf of the property. The option can only be
exercised by Big Bang Ressources Ltée when all the exploration and evaluation payments
and costs have been incurred.
Amounts received related to this agreement are recorded against exploration and evaluation
assets. This agreement ended in 2012.

8. Write-off of exploration and evaluation assets and mining properties:
Regularly, a committee composed of key members of management reviews all the Company’s
mining properties to make sure they are still aligned with the strategic objective.
Following this review and contractual obligations, the following write-off were made during the
year:
On November 15, 2013, African Barrick Gold, operator of Tulawaka mine in Tanzania, announced
the sale of Tulawaka. Following this announcement, the Company decided to cease its
exploration activities around Tulawaka and to write off the exploration and evaluation assets of
the Tulawaka property.
Also, based on the analysis of market conditions and metal prices, the Company decided to focus
on the most promising and the most advanced projects, which are: Ikungu, Ikungu East, Nikonga,
Simba (Isambara) and Crevier projects. Following this decision, the Company wrote off its other
gold projects in Quebec, which are: Des Meloises, Isle Dieu, Lac Shortt, Lesperance, Le Tac and
Samaqua.
During the previous year, following the committee’s review, the Company made the following
write-offs:
(a) Tanzania:
Baraka:
The cumulative results of the exploration and evaluation of mineral resources in the property
performed since August 2012 have not led to the discovery of commercially viable quantities
of mineral resources. The Company has decided to discontinue such activities in the property
and will not renew its right to explore in this area.
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8. Write-off of exploration and evaluation assets and mining properties (continued):
(a) Tanzania (continued):
Kunga (Viyonza):
Under the terms of its joint operating agreement, the Company had to proceed with a
feasibility study. The Company had obtained a first time extention for the completion of this
study by issuing 125,000 shares in 2010. Following the finding that the initial parameters of
the agreement dated January 2003 were no longer appropriate to the current situation, the
Company conducted negotiations to change the parameters of this agreement. Given the
refusal of the partner to modify the agreement, the Company decided to cease its operations
on this property and wrote off the Kunga project.
Msasa:
The partnership agreement on the Msasa project stated, among other things, that the
Company had to proceed with a feasibility study for the month of December 2012.
Considering that the cumulative results of this property could not justify the feasibility study
for the year 2012, the Company entered into negotiations with the partner to postpone the
date of execution of the study in order to obtain more positive results. The refusal of the
partner at the end of March 2012 led the Company to cease its operations on this property
and to write off the Msasa project.
(b) Québec:
MC Gold:
Following disappointing results of the second drilling campaign which ended in 2012, the
Company decided to withdraw from this project.
9. Property and equipment:
2013

Cost
Exploration equipment
Furniture and equipment
Computer equipment

Accumulated
amortization

Net book
value

$

54,566
71,152
51,388

$

45,740
35,180
25,456

$

8,826
35,972
25,932

$

177,106

$

106,376

$

70,730
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9. Property and equipment (continued):
2012

Cost
Exploration equipment
Furniture and equipment
Computer equipment

Accumulated
amortization

Net book
value

$

51,388
63,726
49,714

$

18,973
23,332
38,718

$

32,415
40,394
10,996

$

164,828

$

81,023

$

83,805

10. Other long-term liability:
Amount payable relating to an indemnity agreement given during the year 2009, payable in
quarterly payments of $25,000, discounted at a rate of 10%, maturing in December 2014.
11. Share capital and warrants:
The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares with no par value.
Flow-through share issuance
On November 26, 2011, the Company completed a private placement totalling $465,400,
composed of 1,551,333 flow-through units at a price of $0.30 per unit. Each follow-through unit is
composed of one common share of the Company.
The Company is subject to regulatory requirements related to the use of funds obtained by flowthrough share financing. These funds have to be incurred for eligible exploration expenses.
During the year, the Company complied with all of its regulatory requirements.
12. Share-based payments:
Share option plan
Under the share option plan, the Company may grant up to a maximum of 8,000,000 share
options to employees, directors and officers to acquire share capital.
The Board of Directors sets the conditions for acquiring the common share options according to
quantity and exercise prices which they established in accordance with regulations. Prior to 2010,
options vested immediately. Since 2010, options are vested immediately or over a period of 5 to
7 years. The maximum term is ten years.
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12. Share-based payments (continued):
Share option plan (continued)
The table below presents a summary of the changes in the share option plan:
2013

Number of
options

Weighted
average
exercise price

2012

Number of
options

Weighted
average
exercise price

Options outstanding,
beginning of year
Granted
Cancelled
Expired

2,800,000
60,000
(200,000)
(100,000)

$

0.47
0.10
0.51
0.84

2,920,000
‒
(30,000)
(90,000)

$

0.48
‒
0.25
0.90

Options outstanding,
end of year

2,560,000

$

0.45

2,800,000

$

0.47

Exercisable options,
end of year

2,520,000

$

0.45

2,720,000

$

0.47

The fair value of the options granted during the period was estimated at the date of the grant
using the Black-Scholes valuation model for 60,000 options with the following assumptions:

Exercise price
Share price on the option grant date
Fair value of options
Risk-free interest rate
Expected remaining life
Expected volatility
Expected dividend yield

$
$
$

25

0.10
0.05
0.016
2.5%
5 years
55%
0%
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12. Share-based payments (continued):
Share option plan (continued)
The table below presents supplemental information about the share option plan as at
December 31, 2013:

Number of
outstanding
options

Range of exercise prices
$0.05 - $0.19
$0.20 - $0.44
$0.45 - $0.51
$0.52 - $0.79
Undetermined (i)

(i)

Weighted
average
remaining
contractual life
(years)

100,000
310,000
1,960,000
150,000
40,000

7.6
5.4
1.5
0.3
−

2,560,000

2.3

In relation with an indemnity agreement, 200,000 options were granted during 2009 and vest
on a linear basis once a year over a five-year period. The exercise price is then determined
when options are vesting. During the year ended December 31, 2013, 40,000 options have
vested at an exercise price of $0.05 (40,000 options were vested at an exercise price of
$0.20 during 2012).
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13. Administrative expenses:
2013
Professional fees
Salaries and fringe benefits
Share-based payments
Transfer fees
Travelling expenses
Rent
Office expenses
Promotion expenses
Reports to shareholders
Insurance, taxes and permits
Membership and training
Telecommunications
Taxes and permits
Project development
Amortization of property and equipment

$

451,341
564,959
7,906
25,935
60,845
112,867
39,080
8,010
17,210
25,832
5,133
12,569
80
3,129
15,555

2012
$

546,897
901,192
19,468
34,788
107,824
120,142
31,159
47,613
19,427
39,942
14,414
16,291
273,562
12,022
16,716

$ 1,350,451

$ 2,201,457

2013

2012

14. Net finance cost (income):

Interest income on cash and investments
Gain on sale of investments

$

Finance income
Accretion expense of the other long-term liability
Net foreign exchange loss
Bank charges and other
Finance cost
Net finance cost

$

27

(19,255)
(259)

$

(82,907)
‒

(19,514)

(82,907)

14,796
32,744
59,474

22,809
80,935
14,258

107,014

118,002

87,500

$

35,095
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15. Taxes:
(a) Tax recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive (loss) income:
2013
Current tax recovery

$

Deferred tax expense:
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Deferred tax asset reduction (i)

$

(1,490)

2012
$

(632,367)
−

(20,408)
1,673,000

(632,367)

1,652,592

(633,857)

$

2013
Reconciliation of effective tax rate:
Net loss
Income taxes

2012

$ (12,883,586)
1,597,970

(6,498,825)

(11,285,616)

(1,748,184)
2,127
(633,789)
64,004

(3,035,831)
5,237
(75,030)
(6,362)

1,681,985
−

3,036,956
1,673,000

Tax expense based on the federal and provincial tax rates
of the Company (2013 and 2012 - 26.9%)
Stock-based payments
Mining tax credit
Non-deductible expenses and other
Current year losses for which no deferred tax assets
are recognized
Deferred tax assets reduction (i)

(i)

1,597,970

$ (5,864,968)
(633,857)

Loss before income taxes

Tax expense (recovery) on profit and mining

(54,622)

$

(633,857)

$

1,597,970

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company recorded a reduction of
deferred tax assets of $1,673,000 following the announcement of the Tulawaka mine
closing, in which the Company received operating royalties from the available cash flows
generated by its operating activities (Note 1).
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15. Taxes (continued):
(a) Tax recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive (loss) income (continued):
The non-capital losses expire as follows:

2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033

$

8,814,337
287,863
2,910
3,770,250
330,322
2,239,049
1,437,469

$ 16,882,200

(b) Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities:
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:
2013
Asset
Deferred tax assets (liabilities):
Mining properties
Exploration and evaluation assets
Non-capital losses
Other liability

$

Deferred tax assets (liabilities)
Offsetting of tax assets and liabilities
$

29

−
83,000
105,000
−

Liability

$

(81,000)
(567,224)
−
(2,000)

188,000

(650,224)

(188,000)

188,000

−

$

(462,224)

Net

$

(81,000)
(484,224)
105,000
(2,000)
(462,224)
−

$

(462,224)
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15. Taxes (continued):
(b) Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities (continued):
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following (continued):
2012
Asset
Deferred tax assets (liabilities):
Property and equipment
Mining properties
Exploration and evaluation assets
Share issue costs
Non-capital losses
Other liability

$

Deferred tax assets (liabilities)

7,000
‒
‒
1,000
429,000
20,000

Liability

$

457,000

Offsetting of tax assets and liabilities

‒

$

(1,551,592)

(457,000)
$

‒
(196,000)
(1,349,592)
‒
‒
(6,000)

Net

(1,094,592)
‒

457,000
$ (1,094,592)

7,000
(196,000)
(1,349,592)
1,000
429,000
14,000

$ (1,094,592)

(c) Unrecognized deferred tax assets:
2013
Deferred non-capital losses
Deferred capital losses
Property and equipment
Exploration and evaluation assets
Share issue costs
Other

2012

$

4,426,000
226,000
10,000
955,000
1,000
19,000

$

4,015,000
226,000
−
−
−
−

$

5,637,000

$

4,241,000

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of these items because it is not
probable that future taxable profit will be realized for which the Company can utilize those
benefits. The capital losses do not expire under current tax legislation.
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16. Cash flows:
2013
Operations without impact on cash related to:
Operating activities:
Change in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
related to exploration and evaluation assets and
mining properties
Investing activities:
Change in exploration and evaluation assets of which
capitalized tax credits related to resources are
included in accounts receivable

$ (451,477)

10,194

2012

$

314,106

368,071

17. Financial instruments:
Fair value
In establishing fair value, the Company uses a fair value hierarchy based on levels as defined
below:
●

Level 1: defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets.

●

Level 2: defined as inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are either directly or
indirectly observable.

●

Level 3: defined as inputs that are based on little or no observable market data, therefore
requiring entities to develop their own assumptions.

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and trade accounts payable and accrued
liabilities are financial instruments whose fair value approximates their carrying value due to their
short-term maturity.
The fair value of the short-term investments is obtained by discounting future cash flows with a
discount rate assessed by comparing closing rates of similar financial instruments at the balance
sheet date on the financial markets (Level 2).
The fair value of the other long-term liability is determined by discounting future cash flows with a
discount rate assessed by comparing closing rates of similar financial instruments at the balance
sheet date on the financial markets (Level 3).
The difference between the fair value of short-term investments and the other long-term liability
with the book value is not significant.
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17. Financial instruments (continued):
Financial risk management
(a) Foreign exchange risk:
The Company was receiving royalty revenues until December 31, 2012 and incurs some
exploration costs in US dollars and is consequently exposed to foreign exchange risk.
The balance of financial assets and liabilities denominated in US dollars is as follows:
2013
Cash
Accounts receivable
Trade accounts payable and accrued liabilities

2012

$

56,300
582,100
(555,776)

$

397,323
542,045
(406,747)

$

82,624

$

532,621

All other things being equal, a variation of 5% of the US dollar in relation with the Canadian
dollar would have the following effect on the net income (loss) and the other comprehensive
income.
2013
Net loss
Other comprehensive income

$

(25,363)
29,494

2012
$

(877)
38,541

(b) Credit risk:
The credit risk is the risk that the Company is not paid by a third party who does not respect
its agreement obligations. It is mainly reflected in cash and cash equivalents, short-term
investments and in accounts receivable.
The Company invests its cash and its short-term investments in high quality titles issued by
Canadian financial institutions. Also, the Company invests a portion of its cash in guaranteed
investment certificates and in bonds of public companies in order to reduce its exposure to
credit risk.
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17. Financial instruments (continued):
Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk:
The liquidity risk is the risk the Company may encounter when payments of its engagement
are due.
The Company manages its liquidity risk by using budgets allowing to determine the
necessary funds required to meet its exploration plans. Moreover, the Company makes sure
that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current obligations.
As indicated in Note 18, the Company manages this risk through the management of its
capital structure. In addition, it manages the liquidity risk by continuously monitoring its actual
and projected cash flows. All trade accounts payable and accrued liabilities are payable by
the next financial year. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company has sufficient
funds available to meet its current liabilities.
(d) Interest rate risk:
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.
The Company holds the majority of its cash in interest-bearing accounts which are therefore
only exposed to future cash flow fluctuations coming from changes in market interest rates.
Short-term investments consist mainly of bonds and guaranteed investment certificates with
maturity of less than twelve months and are, therefore, exposed to interest rate risk on fair
value. A fluctuation of 100 basis points on market interest rate would not have a significant
impact on the financial results of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2013 and
2012.
18. Capital management:
In terms of capital management, the objective of the Company is to preserve its ability to continue
its mining exploration while maintaining the current exploration programs and development of
mining assets, to provide sufficient working capital to meet its current commitments and pursue
potential investments.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in accordance with the
aforementioned objectives, as well as in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets.
The Company does not have any externally imposed capital requirements, neither regulatory nor
contractual requirements to which it is subject, other than those related to its flow-through
financing program.
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19. Related parties:
Transactions with key management personnel
The key management personnel, including directors and members of the Board, are people
having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
Company, either directly or indirectly.
Key management personnel compensation comprised:
2013
Salaries and other short-term benefits
Share-based payments

2012

$

486,328
4,630

$

719,483
19,468

$

490,958

$

738,951

Loans to directors
In 2010, following the issuance of shares of the long-term incentive plan, the Company provided a
loan to two of its key directors in the amount of $62,400 which is included in accounts receivable
as at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012. Those loans, bearing interest at 1% per year,
are repayable at all times, either in part or in full, and will mature on December 31, 2014. If the
borrower ceases to be an employee of the Company, the loan will become due immediately.
20. Commitments and other contractual agreements:
(a) Mining properties:
Nikonga (Tanzania)
On September 30, 2010, the Company acquired the Nikonga property, located 40km
southeast of the Tulawaka mine, in exchange for a series of annual payments:
-

US$10,000 upon signature of the agreement;

-

US$15,000 on the first anniversary of the agreement;

-

US$20,000 on the second anniversary of the agreement;

-

US$30,000 on the third anniversary of the agreement.

The subsequent annual payments will increase by US$2,000 each year, until the start of a
feasibility study or the abandonment of work;
An additional amount of US$100,000 will be payable upon completion of the feasibility study
on the property; and
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20. Commitments and other contractual agreements (continued):
(a) Mining properties (continued):
Nikonga (Tanzania) (continued)
An additional amount of US$200,000 will be payable upon the decision to enter into
production.
Lastly, following the beginning of production, a royalty equal to 1% of net revenue of the
foundry will be payable. However, this royalty will be redeemable in the amount of
US$1,000,000.
Ikungu (Tanzania)
On February 25, 2013, the Company signed an agreement with Metalinvest Capital
Corporation ("Metalinvest"). Under this agreement, the Company granted an option to
Metalinvest to acquire an undivided 55% interest in the Company’s exploration licenses
forming the Ikungu property.
On May 14, 2013, the agreement was terminated because Metalinvest did not provided the
funds required by the agreement within the required timeframes.
On October 15, 2013, the Company signed a letter of intent with Tanzania Minerals
Corporation in which it gives it an option to acquire a 50% interest in the Company's
exploration licenses forming the Ikungu property.
On December 20, 2013, the two companies have mutually decided not to enter into a
definitive agreement to jointly explore and develop the Ikungu Gold Project in Tanzania. The
two sides decided to abandon the letter of intent dated October 15, 2013. The Company remit
to Tanzania Minerals Corporation its initial deposit of $200,000 which was received at the
signature of the letter of intent and had been placed in trust, minus the legal fees of $25,000
incurred by MDN.
Crevier (Québec)
Having carried out exploration investments required during fiscal 2012, the Company has an
option, without a due date, to acquire an additional 15% interest in MCI by paying in cash or
in shares, at the Company’s option, $750,000 to the non-controlling shareholder.
(b) Management fees related to the Tulawaka Mine:
Under its joint venture agreement with African Barrick Gold, the Company committed itself to
pay management fees of 3% on its share of exploration, operating, development and capital
expenditures related to the Tulawaka mining property. Following the sale of this property by
African Barrick Gold, the management fee agreement ended.
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20. Commitments and other contractual agreements (continued):
(c) Operating leases:
The Company is committed under a lease expiring in July 2015 for the rental of its premises.
In May 2013, the Company exercised an option to terminate allowing it to put an end to its
lease on January 1, 2015. Minimum payments for 2014 will be $104,941.
21. Contingencies:
Communications with Tanzania Revenue Authority (“TRA”)
During the second quarter of 2013, the Company received a new written communication from the
TRA regional office in Mwanza in respect of withholding payment of alleged interests between
MDN Tanzania Ltd. and MDN Inc. for advances made by the parent company to its Tanzanian
subsidiary during the years 2004 to 2011. The TRA had used an amount of approximately
$515,000 (US$490,000) in sales taxes receivable included in accounts receivable in the
consolidated balance sheets in compensation of the amounts claimed in the notice of
assessment.
The Company has always stated in the various documents, including a contract between the two
parties, that the parent company made advances to its Tanzanian subsidiary without interest,
which is a common practice in the industry of mineral exploration. The TRA claims that it is not
possible to have an interest free loan and the subsidiary should have retained 10% of all amount
of interest paid as withholding.
Management, after discussion with his lawyers, immediately notified the National Commissioner
of the TRA its opposition. Management believes that the TRA regional office in Mwanza does not
understand the particularities of mining exploration companies, given the standards of markets,
corporate business style as well as the inability of exploration companies to obtain bank loans. In
this opposition, management is confident of the chances of success with regard to the dispute.
During the third quarter of 2013, TRA’s decision to use sales tax receivable in compensation of
the amounts claimed was overturned in court, but the TRA used the highest appeal court, the
Court of Appeal. On December 19, 2013, the Court of Appeal ruled in favour of MDN in this case.
No provision has been recorded in the consolidated financial statements of the Company at
December 31, 2013 as management believes that the outstanding items above are unfounded
and that the Company owes no tax to TRA.
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